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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEWE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$39,338,000 (2014:
HK$23,896,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31st March 2015, the Group

recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$119,886,000 (2014:

HK$144,817,000) and a loss attributable to equity holders of

the Company of HK$39,338,000 (2014: HK$23,896,000).

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment for the year increased from HK$51 million to HK$56
million. As at 31st March 2015, the Group provided channels
through various operators, including Red Channel through the
platform of HBO in certain Asian territories, HD movie channel
through Chunghwa Telecom MOD platform and Taiwan
Broadband Communications in Taiwan, a movie channel and a
variety channel through the UTV multimedia platform of China
Mobile Hong Kong, a movie channel through the TVB pay TV
platform in Australia and a new movie channel through TVB

pay vision in Hong Kong commencing July 2014.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HBO Asia to launch and distribute the “RED Channel”
in different Asian countries and territories by stages. In this
cooperation, the Group is responsible for providing contents
of movies and drama series through our content library, own
production and acquisition to the channel. This cooperation
has helped the Group to distribute its content to Asia and then
the global market. It has helped the Group to establish its
brand name in the TV and content provider businesses. Since
its launch, the channel is now available in 7 countries and
territories including Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Philippines,
Vietnam, Myanmar and Cambodia. We look forward to

distributing the channel in other Asian countries and territories.
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addition to subscription revenue, the channel is expected

to start generating advertising revenue after it becomes
popular in Asia in the future. The Group is exploring further
cooperation opportunities with HBO Asia in content creation

and distribution.

The other channels have also provided steadily increasing

contributions to the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities to develop channels with other operators and

other media platforms.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sublicensing segment was
decreased from HK$73 million to HK$36 million, which was
mainly attributable to less humber of new titles released during
the year, and those newly released titles did not receive much

encouraging response from the market.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customized programs to

its audiences.

Following the development of its economic environment,
China’s film exhibition industry has grown rapidly in the recent
years. The China theatrical box office income has grown
continuously from approximately RMB4.3 billion in 2008 to
approximately RMB29.6 billion in 2014. Taking into account
of the increasing demand in China, the Group continues to
strengthen its film library through acquisition, own production
and co-production. A number of new titles are in the progress
of production and they are expected to be released in the
forthcoming year. In addition, the Group has started to

penetrate into the China theatrical market and established its
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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first theatre in Tianjin since 2011. The Group’s another theatre
in Jiading, Shanghai has also commenced operations since
2013. The Group’s theatres are all digital with most of them
are 3-D equipped.

The theatre in Tianjin has 7 screens consisting approximately
1,200 seats, during the year, this theatre contributed
approximately revenues of approximately HK$14 million
(2014: HK$9 million) to the Group. The one located in Jiading
Shanghai has 10 screens with approximately 1,600 seats
and contributed revenues of approximately HK$11 million
(2014: HK$4 million) during the year. Although the Group’s
theatre operations is still under investment stage, the Group is
confident of its prospects taking into account the continuous

growth of China film exhibition industry.

The revenues attributable to sale and distribution of films
and programs in audio and visual product format dropped
to the level of approximately HK$0.8 million (2014: HK$5
million). Following the shrinkage of video industry and rapid
development of technology, the distribution of films and
programs is no longer limited to video discs but in digital
formats available over the Internet. The Group is diversifying
its distribution network to online downloading and streaming

in order to adapt to the expected future consumer behavior.

The Group has launched its video website “www.116.tv” and
its video apps “116”, which include contents of films, drama
and entertainment news. During the year, the Group also
invested in a game development company in order to enrich
the website content in the future. Taking into account that the
operation is still in investment stage, the segment attributed
loss of approximately HK$9 million (2014: HK$9 million) for
the year. Despite this, the Group considers the new media
investment will ignite a revolution to the video distribution

industry and fit the expected market demand.
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oup’s artiste management busmess contributed

approximately HK$2 million (2014: HK$2 million) revenues to
the Group during the year. The Group will continue to seek
other potential artistes and performers in order to build up a

talent pool from which all future productions will be benefited.

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely Hongkongmovie.com
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“HKM?”). Other than
providing services to the Group, HKM also provides playout,
post-production, HD-film restoration and channel management

services to a number of other media operators.

HKM has started to provide its services under the developed
M-OTT platform which enables audiences to watch content
through TV, PC, smart phone, tablet and smart TV and set-
top box. HKM is also co-operating with other institutions to
develop more advanced technology in multimedia area, e.g.
content distribution network, which is expected to contribute

future favorable returns to HKM and the Group.

During the year, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss recorded an unrealised gain of
approximately HK$6.7 million (2014: HK$4.3 million). The
investment properties portfolio of the Group contributed
a surplus on revaluation of approximately HK$7.6 million
(2014: deficit of HK$7.5 million) during the year. In addition,
the Company granted 72.8 million share options to qualified
participants during the year at an exercise price of HK$0.7
per share. A share-based payment expense of approximately
HK$8.5 million (2014: Nil) was charged to the profit and loss
during the year. Such unrealised gains/losses have no effect

on the Group’s cash flow.
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2014, the Company has reached agreement to establish an
investment fund principally investing in films, drama and other
equity investments. As at 31st March 2015, the establishment
of the investment fund is still in progress and the Group
considers that the cooperation will further enhance its

exposure in the industry.

In respect of the litigation as set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15th April 2011, after taking advice from
the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, the plaintiff’s claim is rather flimsy and the

chance resulting in unfavourable outcome is not great.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2015, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$78 million, of which approximately
HK$53 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s deposits,
financial assets and properties with aggregate net book values
of HK$123 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 10% as at 31st March
2015 was based on the total of bank loans and overdrafts
and obligations under finance leases of HK$53,206,000
(of which HK$42,642,000, HK$1,542,000, HK$2,891,000
and HK$6,131,000 are repayable within one year, in the
second year, in the third to fifth year and after the fifth year
respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$529,009,000. The Group’s borrowings and bank
balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi and has no significant exposure to foreign currency

fluctuations.
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espect of guarantees given to banks for facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$45 million
and commitments in respect of film production, film and
program licensing agreements and investments amounting to
approximately HK$129 million in aggregate. The commitments
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and banking

and other available facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2015, the Group employed 176 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market trend
and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the basic
salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus, medical
insurance scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group
also has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
Employee benefit expenses of HK$50.5 million, including
a share-based payment expense of HK$8.5 million, were

charged to the profit and loss during the year.
On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2015
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 56, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible for
the corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is
the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is the father of Mr. Li Tang Yuk, an executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 60, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited (“MPIA”) since 2001.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 30, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the business development
of the new media sector of the Group and its principal
associated company. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the

Chairman of the Company.
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g, aged 57, has been appointed as an Executive

Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He received a Doctorate
Degree from the London School of Economics and Political
Science in 1991 and has over 20 years’ experience in financial
investment and corporate management. Prior to joining
the Company, Dr. Dong worked for Sunbridge Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an investment fund management
company. He had also been a Senior Managing Director
of Bear Stearns, and Director of Merrill Lynch respectively,
and Executive Director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited and Tianjin Development Holdings Limited,

both shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 59, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and is a
partner of International Data Group (“IDG”) Capital Partners,
and the President of IDG-Asia, which has headed IDG’s
operations in information technology publishing, market
research and tradeshows in the Asia Pacific region. Mr.
Shong is now the trustee of Boston University. Mr. Shong is
also a non-executive director of China Jiuhao Health Industry
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and a non-executive director of WPP pilc,

which is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

ke
!1__'.|”r_l
EREL E+tm ERZEEAEATH
TESREFLEERR BH-Z—NFNA
—BERER MR- AN —FRABAKER
BUANZEmMEREL SN FEBE -1
FrERMBRERTCEETELR - MALXRQF

Al ERTERERBRSREEERRAF (-
FREESEELNT) WABHERBEHE
ZEREBRES  EMIAFTABESRT
BAFREBERERABDRKZRRERE
FRAT (ROBERBERA L) 2HTES -

FMITES

MRBREE 9@ R-ZTLHE_AEZ
ERERRBAZFUTES  BELETRER
HEEE (DG EXREBARENERER
EEIDGRAMERE  BEFERKME
R TEMERER - RAERB/RLTEKX
BERA - BEETAPEIRREEXS
ROAB(BRPAERLTAR) ZFHITES
K WPP plc (RfaREERZ ML) Z2FH
TES-

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F %R

11



12

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 68, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST Inc,
a private equity research firm. His business experience in Asia
dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s role in
the consortium which won the government-sponsored bidding
for Hong Kong’s cable tv franchise. He became a partner in
Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and since that
time has played a key role in the development and continues
to serve as the Chief Operating Officer and a member of its
Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc., a Beijing-based card
services company which is partnered with SinoPec Group in
China. Over the past decade, he has also provided consulting
and strategic advisory services to a number of international

corporations.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee G. Lam, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February
2007. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics
and Sciences, a Master of Science in Systems Science, and
a Master of Business Administration Degree, all from the
University of Ottawa in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in
Public Administration from Carleton University in Canada, a
Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and
a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom, a PCLL in law from the
City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional
Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
SCS, a LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton in
the United Kingdom, a Master of Public Administration and
a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from The University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lam is also a former member of the Hong Kong
Bar and a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and an

Honorary Fellow of CPA Australia.
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Dr. Lam has over 30 years of multinational general management,
management consulting, corporate governance, investment
banking, direct investment and investment fund management
experience, and also serves on the board of several publicly-
listed companies and investment funds in the Asia Pacific region.
Having served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for two terms, the Legal Aid Services Council and
a Member of the New Business Committee of the Financial
Services Development Council (FSDC). Dr. Lam is a Member of
the Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a Specially-invited
Member of the Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Vice Chairman of
Liaoning Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a Member
of the Derivatives Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx), a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, a Member of the World Presidents’
Organization, a Member of the Chief Executives Organization, a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for
Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Board Member of the
Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau,
a Founding Board Member and the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, a Member of the
Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a founding Member of
the Hong Kong-Korea Business Council, a Vice President of the
Hong Kong Real Property Federation, Chairman of Monte Jade
Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong, Chairman of
Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation (HKAECF)
and a Member of the Court of City University of Hong Kong.

During the year, Dr. Lam was appointed as vice chairman and a
Non-executive Director of Heng Fai Enterprises Limited on 19th
July 2014 and a Non-executive Director of China LNG Group
Limited on 23rd October 2014. He resigned as an independent
director of Singapore listed company Next Generation
Communications Limited on 14th August 2014 and resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited on 21st October 2014, Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited on 19th December 2014, and Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Limited on 30th March 2015, all of which are
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He was appointed
an independent non-executive director of Mingyuan Medicare
Development Company Limited on 12th September 2014 and
resigned on 26th May 2015.
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EERSEEEAESZ™INT

Mr. Cheung Ming Man, aged 58, has extensive experience
in the sector of performance and cultural and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2004. Mr. CHEUNG has also participated in
a number of community associations, including the Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice
Honorary Secretary); The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Election Committee (First, Second and Third Election
Committee Member); Deputy of the National People’s
Congress of PRC Election Committee (Ninth and Tenth
Election Committee Member) and was awarded Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 2010. Mr. Cheung was elected as the Hong
Kong deputy to the 12th National People’s Congress in
December 2012.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director of
Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited and Honghua Group
Limited (companies listed on the Stock Exchange). He is
also the Chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd. and CNHK Media
Limited.

Senior management

Mr. Zhuo Wu, aged 59, is the President of the Group’s China
division, Mr. Zhuo joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the Group’s overall operation in China. Mr. Zhuo has over
35 years of experience in the film industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he had been the Vice President and General Manager
of a sizable film studio company and digital media company in
China respectively.
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esponsible for all frn'a-n‘(;lal and accounting matte'rs
of the Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of auditing and accounting experience. He joined the

Group in July 2002.

Mr. Long Sao lan, aged 56, is the Program Development
Manager of MATV Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Long is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s TV operations. Mr. Long has over 30 years
of experience in TV operations. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2000, Mr. LONG worked for Commercial Radio,
Television Broadcasting Ltd, HK Cable TV and Chinese
Entertainment Television.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The principles adopted by the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to
shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code for the year ended 31st March 2015,
with the exception of the deviations as mentioned below.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2015.

Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2015, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including four executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Li Tang Yuk and Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive
Directors — Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, and
three independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lee G. Lam,
Mr. Cheung Ming Man and Mr. Guo Yan Jun. Biographies of
the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 14.
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of directors (Continued)
There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules and other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the
independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to deal with the requirement in respect of the appointment
terms of non-executive directors as required under the code
provision.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of the irrespective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year, the Board held seven board meetings and one
general meeting. The attendance of the directors are set out
below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Mr. Tong Hing Chi
Mr. Li Tang Yuk (appointed on 1st May 2014)

FEELE
EERLE

Mr. Hugo Shong RERERR T

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lee G. Lam MEREEL
Mr. Cheung Ming Man REAGEE
Mr. Guo Yan Jun IMELE

Mr. Chau Kei Leung (resigned on 1st May 2014)

Note

(a) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

TEBEE(R=-Z-NFERA—AEZRM)
Dr. Dong Ming (appointed on 1st September 2014) ZEBEL(R=T—MENA —BEETE)

Alan Cole-Ford %t4

BAERE4X (W-_ZE—NFHEA—HEHE)
Ms. Wang Huarong (retired on 1st September 2014) FE#HZ+ (R=ZE—TFEN B —BEE)

L L]

BEE®w)

BMERBT EmRE31001) R QMK B
o MBREEBAEBAATIRSEE L
EYETH BERSRERBYEHTE
= WRHERE o

RETFAMRIALL FATES2EMAERE
BEEEH A RAFUTEEZRELE
EEEH HESFARBAQAFZLTHAA
WESE Bt XAAARARSHKNEHE
i AN TR R ERBFATESE
HIZBRE »

RABCEERBYFHTESRBELTR
AIE3 BRI NETABUMBHCFER
RE-ARARR 2RBIUFHNTESY
e LEmRBEIAEMEABEILIES - B
RBIESIZRRBELAL -

TR EIERTLREFEEER IR
RAE - RESZHFEREESINT

Attendance
HERE
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Exgan BRAE
7 1
7 1
6 1
2 1
5 —(@
- 1
6 —@
6 —@
6 —@
—_ —@
3 —@

Bt

(a) EBAHZEZBBREHFERRAS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%

17



18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

M1z Asbe S
TEERME

Board of directors (Continued)

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of the
Company on the scope and findings of the audit and the
external auditor’s management letter; and (c) to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Mr. Cheung Ming
Man and Mr. Guo Yan Jun (replaced the vacancy of Ms.
Wang Huarong following her retirement on 1st September
2014). The chairman of the committee is Dr. Lee G. Lam.
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Board of directors (Continued)

(1)

(2

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the then
members attended the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2015 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lts
primary duties are to (a) make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and
the remuneration of non-executive director; (b) establish
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy; (c) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Mr. Cheung Ming Man and
Mr. Guo Yan Jun (replaced the vacancy of Ms. Wang
Huarong following her retirement on 1st September
2014). The chairman of the committee is Dr. Lee G. Lam.

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the then
members attended the meetings. During the meetings,
the performance and remuneration of the executive
directors were assessed and the policy for which was
discussed and approved.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Board Committees (Continued)

)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
with written terms of reference. lts primary duties are
to:—(a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c)
access the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Mr. Cheung Ming Man, Dr. Lee G.
Lam and Mr. Guo Yan Jun (replaced the vacancy of Ms.
Wang Huarong following her retirement on 1st September
2014), and two executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Mr. Tong Hing Chi. The
chairman of the committee is Mr. Cheung Ming Man.
The nomination committee determined the policy for the
nomination of directors and the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship during the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met twice
and except Ms. Wang Huarong who was absent in one of
meetings, all of the then members attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when
necessary.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =55 iR €4 & 5 &£ B B BR 2 &

EEZRSw)

3

REEAT
AABEHRE LR A2 BB R L
REZSS ULUEESIABESRE -
HIZHES  RNESZ2HE -
ABR AN (BEREE - AERkER) R
DPEBEFE-R UREAREL 2EF @
EXTERHER  UBRSEALQFZAH
RE . O)MEARSEERELESS
BEzZAT UHEFREBEATE
FESIHMBEAESSRMAER S (0)FF
BRBUFATES 2B IM ) RAHE
E2EAREFEE URESUH
REFERTHAR) BEFTEZEED
EEERNER -

REZESEHAEREAR  BEAR
AZHBNFATEERPHELE - M
FEBIRBRELERREIERL
TRZZE-MFEAR - BREREMZ
ZR) UREAQRFAMEBATESEH
BAELREBRELE -ZEEEIEAR
APELE - FR REZESEERS
BEECBXR URREERF  BERK
BEREBEBATHEESHARAZ
Rt

FR - REZESRTMRERE  RE
ERLTEBREHP-RGHEN > 28
ERRENEHESE

RERQNBDEFESERESZ UL ZH
B REZEERRESERIRMGE
EFgCAN YEEREREREMR
HES -



" AeE : .
ERrEYENS =ven
At AL LI L L
ESsEsanar HadS 2T ENGES
Fermppee - re nEY

Committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 39 to 41. Amount of approximately
HK$1,565,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2015 in
respect of the audit service provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management of
the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood

of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its

subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii)
must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2015.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 42.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 47 to 48 and note
29(b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 191 to 192.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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At 31st March 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$215,046,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$19,974,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
190.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to
shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative

powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the

Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of
Options;

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =55 iR €4 & 5 &£ B B BR 2 &

FRRziERT S
ARARRN-Z-NENLL - BEFZR
B AR ERG —EE R B (R
8 o EEREBIIMT :

(a)

(b)

(c)

Z]:p
BRESFESERIRRERESA
T BHBRREAREEBEREAARQF
HNNBARAREBERRZES &
B FEf-RE BHEA FF #E
B EBRRAERAFIHERBERMAEN
HE REBTERESEANFGSE
ARARRAE - REFAEERE
EHH ERIRT

gmE
RIEBRESEZHRAREBEHERS
FRERARRESZ EMARAT ERHRR D)
ZERELEHRBRRT  ESS(ES
SNAOHAEZENBEREZARQF
HNBARAREBEQAAZEMNESR
B’E - BRE - KE - BAA TPt
EE - (kBREEBFTEERER
ADREREBRE(BRED ZE
- KESERET  AESEREAR
AZHEBEXTIERZSTEY -

THREEER
ExcaEEEBRES - EET L
A8 B K AN B A RO A I A H R R
MBRET  EFENTHREEENERE
HEBTREUTESENED © —

() PEREBRETIRLBRET

TEEEREARA

(i) HEEHRAUREHRET  REM
R R BB AR



(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vii)

EL rEYRNS
L L L LT e
ELTY RR L EE 3 Hagn 2reBusma
LA .A LA -y
42288 s | ]

are option scheme (Continued)
(c) Administration (Continued)

to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the subscription price;

° the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a
period of 10 years from the date of grant);

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

o the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance target);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments must be made;

° the period, if any, during which Shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the
terms of such restrictions;

to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of
Qualifying Grantees; and
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

f)

(9)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share
Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued Shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%
limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Grant to specifically identified Qualifying

(v)

Grantees

Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the
Shareholders before such approval is sought.

Limit for each Qualifying Grantee

The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as
required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2015, the number of securities

available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
563,303,452, having approximately 10% and 9.99% of
5,633,034,525 and 5,640,034,525, being the number of
issued shares of the Company at 31st March 2015 and

the date of the annual report respectively.
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~ Movements of the share options granted under the Share FRREEBEHBSHBRIEZSEHNT :
Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Number of options

IRk ESE
Outstanding

at the Granted Lapsed Outstanding
beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
REMRTE FREd FRARB REXRKRTHE

Directors B=
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEHEELE — 6,500,000 — 6,500,000
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BERLE — 6,500,000 — 6,500,000
Mr. Li Tang Yuk TREBEE — 6,500,000 — 6,500,000
Dr. Dong Ming EL N — 6,500,000 — 6,500,000
Mr. Hugo Shong BERERR LA — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 54 — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
Dr. Lee G. Lam MEBEL - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Mr. Cheung Ming Man REAR L — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
Mr. Guo Yan Jun SPRESLE — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000

Employees of (==
— the Group —AREE — 26,960,000 (1,000,000) 25,960,000

— An associated NG

Company — 6,940,000 (240,000) 6,700,000
Other participants Hithz & — 5,400,000 (340,000) 5,060,000

72,800,000 (1,580,000) 71,220,000
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summary of the options granted during the year is set out

below:

Date of grant

Exercise price of
Options granted

Closing price of
the Shares on
the date of grant

Validity period of
the options

Exercisable period
of the options

29th September 2014

HK$0.70

HK$0.61

From 29th September 2014 to 28th September
2017

()  The options are not exercisable within 6
months from the date of grant

(i) 30% of the options are exercisable during
the period from the 7th to 12th months
from the date of grant

(i)  30% of the options are exercisable during
the period from the 13th to 18th month
from the date of grant

(iv) 40% of the options are exercisable from
the 19th to 36th month from the date of
grant

(v)  Any of the unexercised options at the end
of each of the aforesaid exercise periods
can be rolled over to the next exercise
period and thereafter and be exercisable
before the expiry of the options

The accounting policy adopted for the share options and the
value of the share options granted during the year are set

out in note 2.22 and note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
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rectors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Managing Director)

Mr. Li Tang Tuk (appointed on 1st May 2014)

Dr. Dong Ming (appointed on 1st September 2014)
Mr. Chau Kei Leung (resigned on 1st May 2014)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee G. Lam

Mr. Cheung Ming Man

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Ms. Wang Huarong (retired on 1st September 2014)

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation

At 31st March 2015, other than the interests of the directors in

the share options granted during the year as disclosed under

the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”, the interests
and short positions of each director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section

352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

EERESTRAARELFN
EAERSREEZEG - HE
BOCRBEEEZHEER HKE

RZZE—HF=A=1+—H BREZERER
ERTERER BRETS | —BEE)2
R RIBEARDTMRE S RBE RO F

ERH ) EXVIEB2GETEEZETH
el RARaEEBH SEERR
BTBABEARRGAIREEHRELIE(RES
GRBlzERER) 2B - HEROREREE &
ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ?-

(a) SEE{EO0.02ETZAE N EER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as
at 31st March

Number of shares beneficially held

— Long position 2015
ESRFAcERMBAE — 78 W-E—AF
Personal Family Corporate =ZA=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EELATERT
EEls EBAES XEHES EEES BEZzESLHL
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 317,097,500 189,843,750 2,340,467,550 50.55%
TEE L Note (i) Note (ii)
BiaE (i) BEE (i)
Mr. Tong Hing Chi 16,875,000 — - 0.30%
BEEREE
Dr. Dong Ming 5,000,000 - - 0.09%
EHB L
Notes: Hrat
()  These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of )y ZERVEZTEHELEZRBZTZE
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing. Bt -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, (il ZERVBHZEHEEEEREHZ

a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.
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rectors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation
(Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred

shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

L L] LT} ] bl
[ | L=

EERBRSTRARREATS

EFEREEEZG - 0

BRREEEZHAR HXE
(#&)

(b) FAFMEBLRMER
ZHELELEBABTETINBLAER
HE1 BT 2 ERERIELERD :

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

RS\ RIEEE

Binz 8B

Personal interests

Name £-1 BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EEYERERRAT 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited EHESE L] YN 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnEEEERRAT 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BREdES  REREMEE - A28 H
MEBAR  HARMBARIEEHELE
BETLENZH  EARARTAEEREST
BABBERSEzZEBRABTN\RZF
FAEARLAREERBEEE KRG - 1HE
RD R ERE 2 EAEERAR -

BREMEIN  RERNEAKE  SESRE
BITHRAE(BREREZEBERG T N\EZ
FROGEFEARAREEHEZBERE
ZHRPlzER)EMERZ  FTEERIITE
TRBREFFGROARTREZALARE
BBRELIERO(RAREFNEEE(NE
F)) ZARATRER] o
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short positions in the shares, underlying Bz R RikE

shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept MIERFESIEHEXVIPEIGIFEERE Z
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st FERRBCMER R=ZF—HF=A
March 2015, the Company had been notified of the following =t+—H > RATEEBAMUTEHAATC
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being BITRASUH RULECTERRESZKAE -
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These ZEReA L YREEBEERBRSITH
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of AEBBUINZREL
the directors and chief executives.
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company EREE2ETZFAFIEER

Number of shares — Long position
Ei#A — 8

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March
Note interests 2015
W-E—R%F
=RA=+—H
EELATERT
Hiat EEER BFEzaskl
Ho Chi Sing (a) 398,840,000 7.08%
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P. (b) 370,205,516 6.57%
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. (b) 370,205,516 6.57%
Zhou Quan A% (b) 370,205,516 6.57%
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P. 307,385,666 5.46%
Li Pei Chin ZX&A] 334,042,000 5.93%
Notes: Kt -
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in note (b). (a) ‘EIEMIEE(b) FrEi 2 370,205,516 BEAR 1D °
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the (b)y 3[R —#Ht B KB FEIDG-Accel China
307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Growth Fund L.P.3#%5 2 307,385,666 %
L.P. B e
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No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 17%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 49%
Sales

— the largest customer 18%
— five largest customers in aggregate 46%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2015 is set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 23.

AABRFRLBIURFEEAEEELLD
A2MRAEMNEABDEBE 2EERTHRS
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BRHEHEESLMT :

B
— BARHERD 17%
— BERHEEEE 49%
HEm
- BAREF 18%
— BREFER 46%
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ompany (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a ANEEFEAEFEESRFRTELES
business which competes or may compete with the business FEKER o
of the Group.
Auditor = BEm
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by GENKERRCHEER KESTTEI ST
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer ER e BEERKESHWMEEMEERSE
themselves for re-appointment. B BFEERIMFAERE -
On behalf of the Board REREFE
Li Kuo Hsing E
Chairman FEHR
Hong Kong, 29th June 2015 EF8 2 —E—HEXA=THE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_u
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to
189, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32),
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

= WVEZE 2GR

B ZHERE
FAXTRERAKREBTRLFBRE

(RERZFMELHIBERZL A])

RZHE (LT EBIEMDEFHINRNE
R2F189HETRBUENEBERAR(UT
ERIEARDRENBAR(GHE EEE )
WiREMBHRE  WASVBRREBEN=
T-HAF=ZA=+-BWHRENLAAEES
BEREBZEZALEFENRENRER - FE
2HRER RERZEFHRRESHER
EXR URTIESHHRBERHEMEREE

EFNGSMERRARENRE

BRRESAAERBEREHMOSEM
BB R 35 22 AU K AT & B 2 BHRBID (58
RNE)NRERERUGSHBERER UL
REMBRERFLEEMOFHORR  B%
BEHRARAGESUBRRALENREZ

B EARES M BRER A FAEANKERE
R BB A E KRB o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 #2 £4 & 5 & B B BR 2
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* L]
RIS R 4
opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st March 2015, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th June 2015

BR sy
BMRA  EEEAUBRRCREEBUE
BREXZAEEMA TR EQFAK &
EER-_ZT-BAF=ZA=+—-HBHBHKM
Rk BEEEBEEZALFENBERR
eRE > WO RBAEB(D TRAEN(EESI2
BE)NEEREZRHER

BERKEEEEHR
EES =]

&8 —ZE—HFAZ+AhH

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F %

41



42

= -

RERREED S CRENMAN CHEAE Year ended 31st March
E BE=ZA=1+—HILEE
2015 2014
—E—hF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kiat FRET FET
Revenue Uz 5 119,886 144,817
Cost of sales SHE AN 7 (62,428) (82,634)
Gross profit £ 1] 57,458 62,183
Other income Hug A 5 14,479 13,821
Other gains/(losses) — net Heplhss,(&E) — B85 6 14,510 (2,570)
Selling, distribution and HE BITRMEHEERX
marketing expenses 7 (18,770) (9,616)
Administrative expenses THRX 7 (107,946) (87,629)
Operating loss BEER (40,269) (23,811)
Finance income B U A 8 1,321 817
Finance costs EN= %N 8 (916) (891)
Finance income/(costs) — net BMEWA S (EAR) — B 405 (74)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates  FE{GEEE A TREA (FE) 18 640 (401)
Loss before income tax FRFFSMAIEGR (39,224) (24,286)
Income tax expense SR 9 (1,022) (879)
Loss for the year F£REE (40,246) (25,165)
Loss attributable to: FE(EESIA :
Owners of the Company RATEBA (39,338) (23,896)
Non-controlling interests IR (908) (1,269)
(40,246) (25,165)
HK cents HK cents
B B
Loss per share attributable to owners ELXTIHEE ARG ERN S
of the Company during the year BiR
Basic loss per share ERELRER 11 (0.70) (0.42)
Diluted loss per share BREEEE 11 (0.70) (0.42)
The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these EH51ZE189 B T ARG EMBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Dividends KR 39 — —
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ENrEywNYTn . .

SRYEREE | YERE WhEYE Year ended 31st March

BE=ZA=1+—HL=EE
2015 2014
—Z—hf —Z—mEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt F#EiT FET
Loss for the year ] (40,246) (25,165)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HEM2EKE (&ig) :
Items that may be reclassified to HREEH D LBk Z
profit or loss HH
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BFEMAER 14(a) 8,494 15,122
Deferred taxation arising from EFEGHAREEZ
revaluation surplus of buildings IEFERIE 32 (1,379) (2,457)
Fair value gains/(losses) on AHEENKEEZDRE
available-for-sale financial assets W= (EE) 23(a) 3,120 (6,117)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale Bt HEHBEERERFE
financial assets 23(a) 49 107
Currency translation differences INEREERE (198) 271
Other comprehensive income FREM2EKES
for the year, net of tax HIBRRIA 10,086 6,926
Total comprehensive loss FRXEGIREHE
for the year (30,160) (18,239)
Total comprehensive loss Bh2EEGIREHE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAREE A (29,244) (16,976)
Non-controlling interests IR RS (916) (1,263)
Total comprehensive loss FRNZEEGIREHE
for the year (30,160) (18,239)
The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these EH51Z189E TR NGREMBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. B IR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3§ 43



rifyEYNEYYY YrayETAAY i i
NeyupAE ¥ EEYERY Eaehm As at 31st March

¥

®W=R=+—8H
2015 2014
—E—-RLfE —E-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kiat FRET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE Lt % £ Hb s A AE 13 28,084 28,871
Property, plant and equipment W - WEBEREE 14 218,668 224,411
Intangible assets B EE 15 146 201
Investment properties BREYE 16 223,575 215,994
Film rights, films in progress and EEME - BEPEE
film royalty deposits S RERSE 17 98,944 71,545
Interests in associates PN P e 18 2,128 1,890
Interest in a joint venture REgEbEER 19(a) - —
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EMKEE 23(a) 6,149 3,029
Other receivables and deposits HittfeW s Ea Rz 25 5,960 6,270
583,654 552,211
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 24 144 82
Trade and other receivables 25 R H A EWRFRE 25 24,820 16,159
Amounts due from associates FE U B = N B FIE 18 2,621 7,064
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFTABERZH
profit or loss HEE 23(b) 40,367 35,833
Pledged bank deposits 2K IFRITER 22(b) 23,500 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents HEPERELER 26 32,074 74,259
123,526 156,897
Total assets wEE 707,180 709,108
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners XLFIHAEAEGES
of the Company
Share capital i} 27 112,661 112,661
Share premium B =E 27 126,733 126,733
Reserves fH & 29(a) 289,615 310,377
Shareholders’ funds BRRES 529,009 549,771
Non-controlling interests FEER R 5,932 7,493
Total equity aEa 534,941 557,264
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ENrEywNYTn yERTERTTE

LS
WEREANE ¥ SEEE wndbe E As at 31st March

®W=R=+—H
2015 2014
—E—-ILfE —E-F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kiat F#EiT FET
LIABILITIES afl
Non-current liabilities FEREAR
Borrowings BE 31(a) 10,314 11,947
Obligations under finance leases RIEEANEE 31(b) 250 —
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIEHE s 32 22,373 20,751
32,937 32,698
Current liabilities mEER
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEAMESTIE 30 64,402 67,196
Receipts in advance FEUFRIE 20,879 20,254
Borrowings BE 31(a) 42,473 20,235
Obligations under finance leases RIEENEE 31(b) 169 -
Current income tax liabilities BNERFr S fE 11,379 11,461
139,302 119,146
Total liabilities HERE 172,239 151,844
Total equity and liabilities HERRAR 707,180 709,108
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE(AR) EERE (15,776) 37,751
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDAR 567,878 589,962
The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 189 FAZ1EZHREUERRA—ZT—EF
were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2015 NA-TtHhBEEESSHE  YRAHES -
and were signed on its behalf.
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FEH BEE#
The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these FH1ZE1E AR GRETBRRZE
consolidated financial statements. BE IR o
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¥

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

YrayETAAY
FTITILEE,

wE

FRERE
REBAR 2 S
REEE

BNFE
RERERBRELEE

o
FAFMAAEGERS

EE
R0 = {E
f#E
wEo

ff&E
mENR R
HAib AR

#AaR

HESRAR

REEERE

HRERADAR

The financial statements on pages 42 to 189 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2015 and were signed

on its behalf.

Director

EFE

Li Kuo Hsing
FERA

The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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As at 31st March

R=A=+—8
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
S FRT FHET
20 462,806 462,784
337 87
26 10 i3
347 350
463,153 463,134
27 112,661 112,661
27 126,733 126,733
29(b) 223,540 223,599
462,934 462,993
30 219 141
219 141
463,153 463,134
128 209
462,934 462,993

BARZI1IVHEZGAUBHRRN_-Z—0F
ANEZthREES=SHE  YRAKE -

Director

EFE

Tong Hing Chi

EER

ES1E189ECMERRGAUBRR 2R

REARD o
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EEhmiEm L] Mrilu@lge to owners of the Company

TTrETY ey

L PR - BLENEARG
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share- assets
based revaluation
Share  payment Buildings reserve Non-

Share Share  redemption reserve  Contributed  Exchange  revaluation TfHHE  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  DIRBEEE  suplus  diference  reseve  HEEE  eamings interests equity
B%  BRAR ROREGE <HRER  WARR  EREE QTEGRR  ERGR  REEA  AHRER 1 1]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
74 741 741 741 7A1 7A1 FA1 -2 AT FA1 A1

Balance at 1st April 2013 W=B-Z£WA-A

Fé ] 112,661 126,733 12 - 189,009 2,001 50,400 1543 78,362 8,756 575,503
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year bR - - - - - - - - me (1% 58

Other comprehensive income/(loss) B 2EKE /()
Surplus on revaluation of bullings ETEREG

(note 14(3) (i 1e) - - - - - - 15,122 - - - 15,122
Deferred taxaton arising from EPE[ERREL
revaluation surplus of buidings BERE W)
(note 32) - - - - - - (2.487) - — - (2:457)
Fair value losses on avallble-for-sale ~ TREEHHEE LA
financial assets (note 23(2) BERMW2239) - - - - - = = (6:117) = = (6,117)
Impairment loss on avalable for sale ~ TEHERKEE
financial asets HERE - - = = = = = 107 = - 107
Curtency translation differences eaEEE
- Group - 150 - - - - - 304 - - - § 310
— Assocates (nofe 16) - BENAHit16) - - - = = (39) = = = = (3)
Total other comprehensive income/oss)  E2TNE/ (BE)4E - - - - - 25 12,665 (6,010) - 6 6,926
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EKE /() 8H - - - - - 25 12,665 (6010 (2389%) (1263 (18.2%9)
Balance at 31t March 2014 —E-REZRZt-A
bé -1 112,661 126,733 12 - 189,009 2,09 63,065 1,533 54,466 7493 557,264
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~ Attributable to owners of the Company

- BLTRBARE
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share- assets
based revaluation
Share  payment Buildings reserve Non-

Share Share  redemption reserve  Contributed  Exchange  revaluation TfHHE  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  DIRBEEE  suplus  diference  reseve  HEEE  eamings interests equity
k%  BAER RORERA <HRER  WARR  EREE GTERRR  ERER  RERY  AHRER #he
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
723 723 7 Tén 7 Tén Tén Tén TEn 7 7

Balance at 1st April 2014 R-3-REMR-AZ
&8 112,661 126,733 12 - 189,009 2,092 63,085 1,533 54,466 7493 557,264
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year g - s - - - - - - 0y (02

Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ E2EKE /()
Surplus on revaluation of bullings ETEREG

(note 14(3) (W1p) - - - - - - 8494 - - - 8,494
Deferred taxation arising from EPE[ERREL
revaluation surplus of buidings BERA WY
fote ) - - - - - - - - -
Fair value gaing on avlleble-forsale ~ TRAEHHEEL A
financia assets (note 23(a) BhEHH29) - - - - - - - 3,120 - - 3,120
Impairment loss on avalable for sales ~ TRHEEHEEZRE
financial assets (rote 23) BEMWi230) - - - - - - - 49 - - 49
Currency translation differences eaEEE
- Group - 558 - - - - - (149) - - - @ (157)
— Associates (nofe 16) - BENAHit 1) - - - = = (#) = = = = ()
Total other comprehensive income/oss)  EA2TNE/ (BE)45E - - - - - (190) 7,115 3,169 - ® 1008
Total comprehensive income/(oss) ~ 2k&/(ER)&H = = - - - (190) 7115 3169 (303%9) (#16) (30,160
Dividend relaing to 2014 “E-MEREZRE - - - - = = = = = (re) (764)
Share options granted BREZRY - - - 8,482 - - - - - - 8,482

Total transactions with owners, BREACKARE ER

recognised directly in equity I3 F - - - 8,482 - - - - - (764 7718
Non-controling interest, arising fiom - £BAREEZAERER
business combination (rote 37) His) - - - - - - - - - 119 119
Balance at 31st March 2015 RZ3-EE=A=t1-A
&R 112,661 126,733 12 8,482 189,009 2,102 70,180 4702 15,128 5,932 534,941
The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these EH51Z189E TR NGRENERRZE
consolidated financial statements. B IR o
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Acquisition of a subsidiary,
net of cash

Incorporation of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of an
associate

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans
Repayments of bank loans
Interest paid on loans and overdrafts
Repayments of capital element of

finance leases
Interest element of finance leases
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interest

Net cash generated from financing
activities

BMEEB S

Ba4UD sesmsaEs
EE oY W
™ shuad o

BERBZRARE
SE(A)/ FERE

S5

REXB A/ FERE

HEE

RREFDZHERE
BEYX  HERRKE

F%EL%?JH&EIE BT

TREXRERE

HEAHEHEMBEEZ

P8 %A

HEWE - #HBERREZ

P8 3IE
B RIS
BBHEAT  ReFE

SEMLAL ST B A
I ) F 2 S RUE

HERQREF ABTRR
ZMBEEZFREHE

REZBHIAREFHE

METEBZHRERE
BITERZPABNIA
EERTER
ENERREXFE
EBERERAN 2SI

BMEELN 2 F 2B H
B FERER ZRE

REFE

Year ended 31st March
BEFE=A=1T—HLFEE

2015 2014
k=2 - 2 —Z—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Jiir23 FET FET
33(a) (16,275) 57,069
(893) (704)
(17,168) 56,365
14 (2,187) (36,739)
(45,819) (69,477)
- 791
33(a) 147 15
8 1,321 817
37 107 =
18 - (1,556)
18(d) 641 -
23(b) 2,142 1,163
(43,648) (104,986)
33(b) 14,800 28,550
33(b) (9,601) (7,000)
8 (907) (891)
33(b) (96) -
8 (9) -
(764) -
3,423 20,659
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Net decrease in cash and cash ReRERAREBERD
equivalents b3 ]

Cash and cash equivalents at FUOzHeRERREER
beginning of year

Exchange differences R

Cash and cash equivalents at end of F¥ZHERERAHRLER
year

Analysis of balances of cash and HeRERBEFRAZREE

cash equivalents bok )

Cash at bank, on hand and RITREFES UK SR
short-term bank deposits TER

Bank overdrafts RITEX

The notes on pages 51 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al
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Note
Kt

26
31

e -
Year ended 31st March

BEZA=+—HL¥FE

2015 2014
—ZT-1%F —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
(57,393) (27,962)
72,366 100,315
(236) 13
14,737 72,366
32,074 74,259
(17,337) (1,893)
14,737 72,366

EH1E189EZMERLGEMBHRR 2B
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eral information
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)

and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, sales and distribution
of films and programs in audio visual product format,
artiste management, theatre operations, property
investment and online streaming and downloading

business.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2015.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

XDRVEAKEAERQIAVTARF ]
REMBLR (B AREDERRE
EREK EXHM  EXMERER
BE USTERPEAHERRTZE
TREE BAEE FREK WX
RERFHARB LRRR THEE -

RABDDREFETMRIIZBERA
7 o HFFMiiEE < it B Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

ARABARBEBBERZMARAT L

m o

BREBERAN  RGEMBHRRUBT
(MBr)23 - FEaMBRREEHR
EEEN-_Z-AFAAZ-TABEHME
E:&

EEEHBREE
RRAGEUBRRRAZEBEHH

RERTX - REEHAN » KEBEK
K2 cREFERNERER -
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policies (Continued)
2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for

this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.
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mary of S|gn|f|cant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEHEE)

2.1.1 Going concern 2.1.1 BHREE

During the year ended 31st March 2015, the
Group incurred a loss before income tax of
HK$39,224,000 and had an operating cash
outflow of HK$16,275,000. In addition, as at
31st March 2015, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$15,776,000.

The directors have prepared a cash flow
projection of the Group for the coming
twelve months from 31st March 2015. The
directors are of the opinion that, having taken
into account the cash inflow from operating
activities, the available banking facilities and
other financial resources of the Group, the
Group has sufficient financial resources to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due in
the coming twelve months from the balance
sheet date. Accordingly, the directors believe
that the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern; and thus have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going

concern basis.

BE-_Z-HEF=A=+—
BILEFESHE  AE@EES
[%Fﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ&?ﬁsg 224,000
B k& EBH SR G
16,275,000/8 7T > B 7 » B
—E-Af=A=+—-8"
TEBZRBEBEFENS
15,776,000 /& 7T ©

ESCHR-F-—HE=A
St-Rr4t-EAN
BEENRSREEN - B
SEEEAEERAEEE
BRERA - THRRST
EERAEERMZ MBS
B RAAEEEZ AN
&F CAESERAM
#ET @A WEEEE
BEES - Bt EERE
AEEHTHEEE B
BEAE 2 EERRGA N
BRE o
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policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The following new and revised standards
and amendments to standards which
are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on 1st April 2014 but do not

have a material impact on the Group:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities
and HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendment)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Novation of derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al
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mary of significant accounting = 2 EE®HBREE®)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RIBE#E(E)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212 BHRFEDREE (&)
(Continued)
(b) New standards, amendments to standards (b) EREf{EERENZ I
and interpretations that have been issued ERY ~ ZER| 2 AAEFT KR
but were not yet effective 2
The following new standards, amendments AT #r2E 8 ~ 28| 218
to standards and interpretations have A AR RS EMME R
been issued but are not effective for the RR-ZE—WEMA—
financial year beginning 1st April 2014 HEAmZHMBEEE
and have not been early adopted by the B BRAREREERE
Group: BRam
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments* ERBRAE NS 0% HETR!
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets EEURAEEN  RERRREAS
(Amendment) between on investor and its FOSRERGH  gb¥omEE
associate or joint venture? ERZR%(BA) HEDHE
HKFRS 11 (Amendment)  Accounting for acquisitions of EAUBSEEN  WELESEES
interests in joint operations? FUEBTR) &
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts* ERUBHREEN  EEELEF
Eug
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with EhmkasEY  EPoAME
customers? F15%
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable FRETENZ105R BETRALFER
(Amendment) method of depreciation and FREENENE BEnn
amortisation? (37%)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer plants? BREHENS68R 23 LENEY
(Amendment) AL
(B7%)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)  Employee benefits — defined EReHENE0E ESEA-RRRA
benefits plans' (f5374) HEN
HKAS 27 (Amendment)  Equity method in separate EAGHENENE BUBFRR ER
financial statemnts? (B37%) Vi
Annual Improvements ~ Improvements to HKAS and FENEEE AL
Project (2010— 2012 HKFRS' (Z3-2£2 HEREEL
cycle) “E-CERE) o
Annual Improvements ~ Improvements to HKAS and FENEEE AL
Project (2011— 2013 HKFRS' (Z3--§% HEREENZ
cycle) “E-CERE) o
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policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that have been issued

but were not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements Improvements to HKAS and

Project (2012— 2014 HKFRS?
cycle)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Investment Entities: Applying
12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception?
Amendment

HKAS 1 Amendment Disclosure Initiative?

Note:

(1)  Effective for financial periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2014

(2) Effective for financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016

(8) Effective for financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017

(4) Effective for financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018

The Group will adopt the above new or
revised standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards as
and when they become effective. The
Group is in the process of assessing the
impact but is not yet in a position to state
whether these would have a material
impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRREBE#®)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation 22 HAEHR

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 221 B E

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s
accounting policies.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

MEBAREASEHHEES
EHE-ER(EEERE
i)  EAEEEZHEZER
MARTEEBzEABRNE
BN UBENEBHEY
ZERZEITEZSER
B AEEZEHZER-
MEAREEHEEBER
EEZBBFEEAKR  HE
DNAEZEFEL L AR
FILZRE AR ©

SERRE EHREXFZ

BERTTUHE -HEQ
AMEZ2HBECREERE
HAE  UBEREFSAEE
ZEHE -

FEBEARBEIESE
BaptAKR WBKHELF
CERRERBWEBEL 28
BEARBRZEE FE
EEBERAEEMRBETR
REZZARE FTEER
REBEIRREZHRE
EZEFNEESREZAR
B EBEOEMEEZA
BEEEURFAEZEE
ERARBENSRWEE B
ZRAREE - AEEERE
THWIBEE . LA REHF
12 IR 4 20 PR AG R 5 T
NEEFRZCHRIATHEZ
EH R EMRKRES 2
FEEEIR M o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I‘I

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

BB EwR M

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is

recognised directly in the income statement.

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets

and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

tEEBEERAE
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ummary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount in the consolidated

income statement.
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mary of S|gn|f|cant accountlng
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Associates (Continued)

1] e
Y rYy Y
r P-HN-.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRREBE#®)
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 HFEEBE)

223 BEZH(E)

2.2.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the group’s interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.
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policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2.4 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and a
jointly controlled entity are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.
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policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in

other comprehensive income.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

mary of sign'ific'aﬁ't' 'accc;unting .
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2.4 YEEBE(E)
(c) HEEZF

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRREBE#®)
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 HBWE(E)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (d) HEGIEFERIBHHE
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that RHEEEMER (BNEERSE

is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the

company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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policies (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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policies (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

25 WM WBBPR®MWE)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.

Construction in progress refers to the leasehold
improvements where the construction works have
not been completed, and is carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure
incurred, and other direct costs attributable to the
construction works, less provision for impairment
losses. When the construction work has been
completed, the expenditure is transferred to
leasehold improvements. No depreciation is

provided on construction in progress.
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policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10
improvements years, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property (land or a
building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease)
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes;

or (b) sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in

the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property as a result of change in
usage, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation surplus of that property. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at
historical cost. Licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
licences over their estimated useful lives of 2

to 3 years.

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
supplier relations have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life
of the supplier relationships, and recognised in

the consolidated financial statements.
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policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &F f2 4%

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Upon
the release of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials, film rights are
amortised at rates calculated to write off the
costs in proportion to the expected revenues
from exhibition, reproduction and distribution
of audio visual products, the licensing of video
rights and other broadcast rights following
their release. Such rates are on a systematic
basis, with reference to the projected revenues
and the underlying licence periods, and are
subject to annual review by the Executive

Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenues
generated by these films. The balance of
film production costs not yet due at the end
of each reporting period are disclosed as
commitments. Costs of films are transferred to

film rights upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c)

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits would
be transferred to film rights and the remaining
payable balances will be recorded as a liability.
Provision for impairment loss is made against
deposits to the extent that film rights will not
be received and the deposit is not recoverable

in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise
its rights under a licensing agreement because
the film producer fails to complete the film, the
Group writes off the difference between the
advances made and the estimated recoverable

amount from the film producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal

and external market information are considered

to assess whether there is any indication that film

rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits

are impaired. If any such indication exists, the

carrying amount of such assets is assessed and

where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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policies (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
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policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,

they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“amounts due from associates”, “pledged
bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet (notes 2.14 and 2.15).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

BB EwR M

policies (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting

2.10 Financial assets (Continueqd)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(c) Auvailable-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end

of the reporting period.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRREBE#®)
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

210 HEEE(EF
2102 BEEREE (&

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income

statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

The fair value of quoted investments is
based on their current bid prices in an active
market. Available-for-sale equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less

impairment.
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rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount reported in the balance sheet when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must

not be contingent on future events and must be

enforceable in the normal course of business and in

the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

company or the counterparty.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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policies (Continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed

through the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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policies (Continued)

217

2.18

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly
controlled entity, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered

by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 EEgNBRREER)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.21 EE#&EF (&)
(b) Pension obligations (b) BHERF

Group companies operate various pension
schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong
participate in a mandatory provident fund
scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

The group companies in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by relevant government
authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees
on a monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed
monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.
The contributions are recognised as employee

benefit expenses when they are due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.22 Share-based payments

(a

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the

fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share

price);

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified

time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares

for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)
When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (and share

premium).

(b) Share-based payment transactions among
Group entities
The grant by the company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to

equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.
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policies (Continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated
net of discounts returns. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues, which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract periods which generally coincide with

when the relevant channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment

is established.

() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery
of the pre-recorded audio visual products and
the materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers in accordance

with the terms of the underlying contracts.

(d) Revenue from the sales and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.
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policies (Continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

(f)

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when

services are rendered.

Revenues from theatre operations mainly
comprise income from box office takings,
which is recognised when the services are

rendered to the buyers.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee income is recognised when

services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest

rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.25 Leases

(a

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.25 Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as the lessor
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an

asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.

Lease income on operating leases is
recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

2.26 Government grants

2.27

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
asset. The grant is recognised in a profit or loss

over the life of a depreciable asset.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRREBE#®

policies (Continued)

2.28 Financial guarantee contracts 2.28 MBEHFEH
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that B IEREHNRIESREABHIEE
require the issuer to make specified payments to BEFARBERBER T EERRNE
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a HEERmOoEEABNELEN
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, EAEZIEEBASEE - BEMIKE
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. R KM B D B R EEE D T [EiR
Such financial guarantees are given to banks, 17 DB EMEEEN - B
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of LIEREERN - BXRHMBRITH
subsidiaries or associated companies to secure g o

loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the BB ERAMELIERBBZRARE
consolidated financial statements at fair value on EHEUBERERPASER o B8
the date the guarantee was given. The fair value ERARREBEZAREAS  IH
of a financial guarantee at the time of signature RETBERREGEQAFERBE > M
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on WEZ nEBEEREREEZERE
arm’s length terms, and the value of the premium — B o RRREZEWRIEFR T
agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee o MALHERE » RATRBZ
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums ZERAEZEBROLSSERR
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, BEBETERFE18EER < #
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees HER  UREMERAEREZ
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, REMFTREZRSETE - %%
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance st DERBEUR G 2 8B KRBT
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the EiEFEY  KEEBYEHBERE -
amount required to settle the guarantee. These FTEREL 2 B AR AR EREREA
estimates are determined based on experience REGERR - BRERZEME
of similar transactions and history of past losses, BOEEAEN  BRGEE WS R
supplemented by management’s judgement. The N

fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in
the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the

consolidated income statement.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other (EEE I EPNCIE Y —ENE] ol = €=
payables of subsidiaries or associate are provided HitEWREEREZERRUARE
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted FREMR ARABEAREALENHE
for as contributions and recognised as part of the REARNBFIERR 2B IREK
cost of the investment in the financial statements of 7K o

the Company.
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Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify, evaluate financial risks in close co-operation

with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
the Republic of China (“Taiwan”), and
the Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”)
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), New Taiwan dollar (“NTD).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional
currency of the individual group
companies and net investments in foreign

operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk arising primarily with respect to RMB
and NTD. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of
the respective foreign operations are also
RMB and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2015, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$1,238,000 lower/higher
(2014: HK$503,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of payable (2014:
receivables) denominated in either HK$ or
RMB that is not the functional currency

of the individual group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollar (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of
foreign currency rate is limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the investment portfolio
is continuously reviewed, carefully
monitored, and diversified in accordance
with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March
2015, if the share prices of the equity
securities of the Group had increased/
decreased by 5%, the pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$2,018,000
(2014: HK$1,792,000) lower/higher and
the equity of the Group would have been
HK$2,326,000 (2014: HK$1,943,000)
higher/lower, respectively.

Pre-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/losses on
equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. The gains/
losses on equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets would
increase/decrease the available-for-sale
financial assets revaluation reserve within
equity.
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inancial risk management (Contlnued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &F f2 4%

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions and other receivables
advanced to third parties, which generate
interest income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
cash balances in these institutions and
advances to these third parties with

various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash and other
receivables held at variable rates. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and other
receivables have been disclosed in note

31(a) and note 25 respectively.

At 31st March 2015, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$38,000 (2014: HK$202,000) lower/
higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability
of funds to meet all contractual financial
commitments as they fall due. The Group’s
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against
risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements, capital expenditure and
financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained
from banks. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, management maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability

under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s
liquidity position and financial performance
and have initiated make sures to improve the
Group’s cash flows. These measures include
raising additional capital; extending existing
loan facilities; obtaining additional financing
from banks; and realising certain financial
assets held by the Group through disposal, if
considered necessary. At 31st March 2015,
the Group held cash and cash equivalents
of HK$32,074,000 (2014: HK$74,259,000),
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$40,367,000 (2014: HK$35,833,000)
and other current assets of HK$27,585,000
(2014: HK$23,305,000) that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk. The Group is expected to be
able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover
its operating costs and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from the date of these

financial statements.
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74,259,000 BT) ~ RAA
B ABERZUBEE
40,367,000 BL(=ZE—M
% : 35,833,000 BL)RHE
{37 Eh & 7 27,585,000 BT
(== — ™ % : 23,305,000
BL)  EHTELBERS
RANBEERBESER °
A BMBHRR B HER
R+=—EAR NEEKEE
EEEHBRSREURGH
e EEE R 2B
BafE -
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MEREER#)

ancial risk management (continves) @ 3
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMEBERRERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) WEIELmEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRERATEERARATZ
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities FETEMBEEERRBREREZ
into relevant maturity groupings based on the ZEAE R RIBHRHEERZE
remaining period at the balance sheet date to EHNREE 2R GREET
the contractual maturity date. The amounts P RABREZERERS
disclosed in the table are the contractual HRBEZHERE °
undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
—FR —ERE MELF EFEUE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FAET
Group FEME
At 31st March 2015 R_-Z—AF=A=+—H
Trade and other B RHEMENFKE
payables 64,402 - = =
Obligations under MERNEE
finance leases 180 180 76 =
Borrowings BE 42,563 1,396 2,993 6,646
At 31st March 2014 R_-Z—MF=A=+—H
Trade and other BSREMBENTE
payables 67,196 = = =
Borrowings g1 20,302 1,517 4,575 6,674
Company b /N
At 31st March 2015 R-E—RFE=A=+—H
Other payables Hfth FE S 518 219 = = =
At 31st March 2014 R-Z—MF=A=+—H
Other payables Hth E (T RIE 141 - - -
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3.2 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative
financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by shareholders’ funds.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March
2015 and 2014 were as follows:

MY
L TNy

+He # a

3 MEREBEE#)
3.2 BEXEH

FEBEEEACBRAREAE
BiFEEE RN UBRRE
HEHKR A HMESEEERER
o WRFER 2 EARRB LD
BERA o

BREVABREREE  AEHY
SREBEARFRGT ZREHE - [
RREE  BRITHBRODITRRRE
BROTEMB TR  HHEEE
A ER

REHMERNRIT -2 AREU
BEEELRETER o IHERL
BERABRURRESHE

AEBREAKEFEBEEELE
EHR20% c R=—E—FER ==
—mE=A=+—HzABEEEL
FMT

2015 2014

—Z—5HfF —Z—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FAT FET

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 31(a)) $RITERNELBE (K7L 31(a) 52,787 32,182
Obligations under finance leases MERNEB(HFE310b))

(note 31(b)) 419 —
Total borrowings BEE#EE 53,206 32,182
Shareholders’ funds BRES 529,009 549,771
Gearing ratio BEEELE 10.0% 5.9%

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year
ended 31st March 2015 was mainly due to the
increase in bank overdrafts and bank loans by the
Group.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al
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EzBEEELZREMNEZAR
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ancial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that

are measured at fair value at 31st March 2015 and

2014.
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through &2 R EFFABREKZ

profit or loss MBEE

— Trading securities (note 23(b)) — R 5 RAEEF (K7L 23(b))
Available-for-sale financial assets AR HERKEE

— Equity securities (note 23(a)) — BRATE S (ffaF 23(a))
Total assets HEE

3 MEREBEE#)

Afe{EEE
TRUAGETESNRDAETE
ZHBIA - FRESHZEZM
T

s FREEREBEERTS
L HREOCRERER)(F -
&) e

o EHE(AER) NBEEER
T4 RS — R P IHE UL
ZABEEERBBEHE(F
=) -

s [FMFERTEETSHE
ZEESEEBE (R TE
EHIB) (B=MR) °

TREZJINR-ZB-HFR=-F—NO
F=A=t-ARAAEHEZA
EWAE :

Level 1

E—#
2015 2014
—Z—h%F —E—-NmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
40,367 35,833
6,149 3,029
46,516 38,862
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong, the United
States of America (“USA”) and the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (“UK?”)

classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provisions for impairment
of trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associated companies, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

3 HMERKRER#)

3.3
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FR o REBE W B RIKH
ARRHITRFEEE R REM
R BEE BfE -

EEEMELEECMBEIAZA
REDNEREER 2T S HRES
BE-BETESZHRERNERS
fi-R58 KL T%EE &
ERBEIEERBIGHRE  MZ
EERRMUDFRAUERREDR
ETZ2HERS  AZHERES
EiR o AREEEVBEERRE
ZTEHREHERERE - ZFT
ARt AE R -FAE-HR2ZTH
TEBRERER  ZFRESRE
(TEBEDRAFIERILEREA
FETE(RE D ETAEIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.8, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to both internal
and external market information, for example,
sales forecast based on expected popularity of the
respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sale, and the general economic condition of
the relevant markets. As at 31st March 2015, the
carrying value of film rights, films in progress, and
film royalty deposits amounted to HK$98,944,000
(2014: HK$71,545,000). Changes in assumptions
used in this assessment, including the forecasted
revenue, may result in additional provision being

made in the consolidated financial statements.

e R RR MR

4 mEEH ST RAER

BT RHE DS AL WUBER
BRAMEZ(BREZBRATHEER
BEZRREMHELR) BER -

REBMBARAREHMGEARMBR - FEE
RHEFTEES ROSEEBBRER
HE RAREERTEVRFEZE
EREEZREEFHERAR M
RABRREMANT -

(a)

BEURE  BROEUREXRE
meREE
BAMTE 2.8 FTE - BEMME - B
HAEBEREFMERESIRER
EHMARSERNBRIARZTHE
R ETRERE - SINEREE
FRACHEBRZERORE Bl
REEREE - BE HERE
THA DREETSZ —RE
BRREZHEERRMN - R=_F— 5
F=ZR=+—H E¥HRE B
EYREEREZRSZREE
#98,944,0008 Tt (== — M :
71,545,000 7T ) ° MF(EPTER A
BHEZ2E(BEFEIRR)RNEE
BERGE VBRERPIELEEIME
o
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of the collectability of those receivables and on
management’s judgement. As at 31st March
2015, the trade and other receivables, net of
provision, amounted to HK$30,780,000 (2014:
HK$22,429,000). A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and the realisation of
any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment may

be required.

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

4 MRBEGERAE=)

(b)

(c)

B 5 B H it FE e % T 9 O

FEBE S REMERRE 2 BE
BUER T DU 52 55 e R IE AT U ]
MEHZTFERERB2HEAR
W -R—_ZE—HF=A=1+—8 >
BE5RHEMEBEWRREBENRERE)
# 30,780,000 Tt (=& — M :
22,429,000 7T ) ° sEfhZE U
MEZERASRMHREEFEEKR
BYE > BESEEFZBAEE
RBERRALEE  UREME &EE
BREAEEER - MZxEEHA
Z AR E - BHETREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of available-for-sale equity
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. If the declines
in fair value below cost were considered significant
and prolonged, additional impairment may be

required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

e R RR MR

4 MRBEGERAE =)

(d)

(e)

AHHERFREZREE

REBRBEFBSTERE 395
ZESIBEEAHHERTRERS
HBRBERBR - ARBEEAFHE
RHVER o AL A B R - AEE
AHE(BEEMER) FHRZER
BZ2RAAEBRERARZEE ; U
RBBRERR 2B REE2EREH
EBRE  BETERIFBRR
RMTEME  UREERBERSR
BERE - X AEKREEREAE
BRABEARKRY @ QA REAEL
HINRE ©

FRiG I
REBARKNEEEERE 27
RSN - EEEFREHER
BREREANERE ZHE - R
AEXBBRETAEASZ RERER
RUBEZRZRAE - AEEKRE
SRR TEIIIE 2 G5
mER AR BETHEEZRE -
HZEBRZRABBERENS
Rz EEAE - AAREEEY
EFHEE 2 IRz N KR FR
SHEERAEE -
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judgements (Continued)
(f)

Employee benefits — share-based payments

Ll
dasEypEs
re =y
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M

The valuation of the fair value of the share options

granted requires judgment in determining the

expected volatility of the share price, the dividends

expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate

during the life of the options and the number of

share options that are expected to vest. Where

the outcome of the number of options that are

vested is different, such difference will impact the

consolidated income statement in the subsequent

remaining vesting period of the relevant share

options.

5 Revenue and segment information

Revenue

Television operations

Film exhibition and film rights licensing
and sub-licensing

Theatre operations

Sales and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product format

Artiste management

Other income

Rental income from investment properties
(note 16)

Management fee income

Dividend income

Others

W

EEES S
EXHRNELRER Y
JSELE

eSS

U EERTEAHEERR
TREXREE
BAERE

Hg A
BEYERS WA
(Kiat 16)
EEBWA
IRE U A
Hith
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BEREF - LEHBERZTR

HERBBREZANERE A
HE IR E TR 2R 0E ~ fh 5T PR
F2RE - BRETERZERR
NERBARGETZBREHE SR
Z oM T2BREREHRE
R HEFKEYETRBRER
HERNBG THB2GERER -

5 H@RsSBEH

2015 2014
—E=—1%F —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
56,035 50,503
35,807 72,958
24,982 13,807
795 5,213

2,267 2,336
119,886 144,817
9,499 7,045
1,821 1,437
1,367 1,120
1,792 4,219
14,479 13,821
134,365 158,638
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(Continued)

The chief operating decision maker has been identified AEBRTESHRATELERE
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive E o HITESEMAER 2 RNEBRE L
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in SFEEE  PBMERRIELERBERE -
order to assess performance, allocate resources and HITEZCRBAEB 2ABREEE
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors KEDER o

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

For the year ended 31st March 2015, the Group operates BE_Z—AF=A=1+—HLEFE"

in seven business segments: REBRCEXERE D BLE !

—  Television operations — EREK

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-licensing — ESEYHMREFRERERER

—  Theatre operations —  EkRER

— Sales and distribution of films and programs in - HUEBERFEAHEERBTEY
audio visual product format S

—  Artiste management — BAEHE

—  Property investment — YERE

—  Video online — SERGEFN
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2015 by each principal activity is as follows:

External sales i

Inter-segment sales HoREE

Segment revenue Az

Reportable segment proft/ I2&HHAIE/
(lss) (B8)

Reportable seqment assets T2HHTEE

Reportablesegment  W2HAEE
ligbilties

Depreciation of property, 4%+ B2 R%fz
plant and equipmentand  FTERBELHE
amortsation of leaschold ~ THEREZ B4
land and land use rights

Amortisaton of intangible  EF&% 2
assets

Amortisation of fim rights  EZ Rz

Provision for impaiment of EEREZHE

fimrights and fimsin ~ ZHERfE
progress

Provision for impaiment of EZEUEERHE
trade receivables &

Adaitions to property, plant FEE » BER
and equipment 2

Additions to fim rights, ~ FEEZAE
fims n progress and fim ~ FHABZR
royalty deposts EYhERS

e segment information for the year ended 31st March

| REIEEBASCBE-B—RE=

A=t—-HLEFEIBEHNT :

Year ended 31st March 2015
HE-T-REZACT-ALEE

Sales and
distribution
of films and
Film exhibition programs in
and film rights audio visual
Television licensing and Theatre product Artiste Property
operations ~ sub-licensing  operations format  management investment  Video online  Elimination Group
UFEER
RVIMR KEHER
REMERY BRER ¥RR
L] RigR L1 5 BB EAER LELT LD i 350
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (b))
(W)
56,035 35,807 24,982 795 2,067 - - - 119,866
56,035 35,807 24,982 795 2,067 - - - 119,886
9,344 (27,946) (10,474) (2,642) (607) 12,409 (9,432) - (29,045)
44791 97,692 39,738 25,100 3443 21,182 452 (161) 442,308
(24,442) (44,462) (15,854) (3,704) (1,431) (24,325) (3,084) - (117,302
(121) (796) (9,191) (419) - - (525) - (11,05
- - - - - - (201) - (201)
(8,387) (7,434 - - - - (393) P (16,185)
- (2,082) - - - - - - (2,082)
- (11,525 - - - - - - (11,525)
1,35 - - 185 - 84 478 - 2,702
21,985 23,441 - - - - 393 - 45,819
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The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2014 by each principal activity is as follows:

External sales b3pii
Inter-segment sales ABEHE

Seqment revenue ks
Reportable seqment profit/ FI2HADHE/
(lss) (8)

Reportable seqment assets T2HHTEE

Reportablesegment  W2HAHEE
ligbilties

Depreciation of property, 4% » B2 R%f2
plant and equipmentand ~ TEREEL R
amortsation of leasghold T A& 2 &5
[and and land use rights

Amortsation of intangible  EFEZ 7%
assets

Amortisation of fim rights ~ EZ Rz

Provision for impaiment of EEREZHE
fimrights and fims i~~~ ZHERE
progress

Provision for impaiment of E5EWEERE

trade receivables i
Additions to property, plant FEE B2
and equipment 2

Addtions to fimrights, ~ FEEZ/RE
fims in progress and fim ~ EXHEYR
royalty deposts EoMERe

P

BEIBXBIIZ2BE-ZE—NF=

B=+—-—HLEFESHEHMT :

Year ended 31st March 2014
BEE-MEZA=T-ALEE

Sales and
distribution
of films and
Film exhibition programs in
and film rights audio visual
Television licensing and Theatre product Artiste Property
operations  sub-licensing operations format~ management investment ~ Videoonline  Efimination Group
NERER
EVHRR FEER
EF/RERY EIEED #hR
HE 3] RER ghsl fR LN U3 E R 4 158
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
fr v fir fr v fir fr v fir
(note (b)
(K)
50,503 12958 13,807 5213 2,33 = = = 144,817
= 498 = = = = = (498) =
50,503 13456 13,807 5213 2,33 - - (498) 144817
13,976 (1,385) (18,281) (4,957) 699 (3,890) 9,151) - (22,989)
26977 120,628 50,580 25,089 5,820 ATAI! 2,602 (191) 449,211
(22,479) (44.221) (15,199) (4,599 (1,778) (23,089) (6,317) - (117,632
(207) (763) (8,159) (612) - - (548) - (10,289)
- - = - - = (202) - (202)
(7.620) (27,99 - (3,451) - = (793) 145 (39,077)
- (4,063) = (1,629) - = (658) 8 (6,263)
= = = (789) = = = = (789)
63 185 18,315 17 — 10 172 = 18,792
13424 53,133 = 2,830 = - 1411 (498) 70,300
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5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment loss is loss before income tax,
excluding unallocated share of profits/(losses) of
associates, other income, other gains/(losses) —
net, finance costs — net, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of leasehold
land and land use rights and share-based payment
expense that are used by all segments and other
corporate expenses (mainly including staff costs
and other general administrative expenses) of the

head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in and amounts due from associates,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets (mainly
including property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights that are used by

all segments).

tEEBEERAE

5 KWERSEBEE w)

(@)

A2/D ST HRERER 2
SRTBRMRE - RERTEEER
KERESBERK LD HEE
2R, (R E o FIEH
AXTEIRTAZ2HOH - @A
SEITESRENERRAER
BUBHRER-—BzAAtE -

rEBzWE B EEREE
DD WMEBDE

A 2 3 5 & 5 18 5 BR BT 18 Bt Al &
B TEERSEBELEE A TR
m (1) ~ Hfblg A ~ HEfh g
=/ (F8) — F8 - BERER —
FRE - MBS EBERZ Y - Hes
REFEZIERES LR L HE
REZBHEEREISIHER
URBREECHMOERS(E

BX

Bk

EEEB THAREM—RITHE
%) e
A 2HD BEENEIERD BB

ERNAzEERERBE QAR
o AEEEBEEE BARE
FAABRRCUBEE - RERSE
BREBEUREMEREE(E
EREAMEDAER ZE - HER

RREUAREEL R L ER
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enue and segment information

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(Continued)

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings and other corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of the head

office).

The revenue attributable to the segment “property

investment” has been included in other income.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities.

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

5 KARSBER G

(a) (%)

A2BDHEETEERDBEIRIT
BERAMEXEB(ZEREL

MERZESER)

(b) [¥MIRIRE D HEIEZWEEETA

HAWA -

°
H ool

2®/oAED BEREEZYH

A2F/oAIES  BEEREEZY
IREBAEE 2 BRAEBATEE - &

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as EERBAEGEYHENT :
follows:
Profit or loss R"a 2015 2014
—E-f —E-NmEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRIT FET
Reportable segment loss Al 2o I EE (29,045) (22,939)
Unallocated amounts: ROBIRIE ¢
Unallocated other income KRB HEMUA 1,468 2,477
Unallocated other gains — net ROBHM S — FEE 6,907 4,958
Unallocated finance costs — net ROBMBMERS — F (916) (891)
Unallocated depreciation of ROBYIZE - HBEREE
property, plant and equipment and ZITERBEE LR
amortisation of leasehold land and T AR 2 8
land use rights (6,047) (5,379)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates  FE{L Bt N TFE,(E5E) 640 (401)
Share-based payment expense AR 10 B B 2 (TR B (8,482) -
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOFEERL (3,749) (2,111)
Loss before income tax per mEWERMIZ
consolidated income statement MRPETSHATE R (39,224) (24,286)
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(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#)
Assets gE 2015 2014
—E—1%F —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRIT FET
Reportable segment assets ERDHBEE 442,308 449,271
Unallocated assets: ROBMEE :
Unallocated property, plant and ROBYIZE - WBEREZER
equipment and leasehold land and FAE K+t AR
land use rights 206,327 204,274
Unallocated available-for-sale ROBARHENKERE
financial assets 6,149 3,029
Unallocated financial assets at fair ROBIRD AREFABREK
value through profit or loss 2B EE 40,367 35,833
Unallocated cash and cash ROBRERZERRESER
equivalents 65 75
Unallocated interests in and amounts K2 EREE AT 2
due from associates P PR B & A R FRIE 4,749 8,954
Unallocated corporate assets ROBMEEEE 7,215 7,672
Total assets per consolidated balance #HaEEEBRAIIZ
sheet BWEE 707,180 709,108
Liabilities fafR 2015 2014
-1 —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2|AHEE 117,302 117,632
Unallocated liabilities: ROBEE :
Unallocated bank borrowings AOBURITEE 52,787 32,182
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEEAERE 2,150 2,030
Total liabilities per consolidated REEERBRMIZ
balance sheet waE 172,239 151,844
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enue and segment information

(Continued)

()

(Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The result of its revenue
from external customers and non-current assets
other than interests in associates and financial
instruments located in Hong Kong and other

countries are summarised below:

Hong Kong B8
PRC ==
Taiwan A
Other countries HAnE =R

During the year ended 31st March 2015, revenues
of approximately HK$21,236,000 was derived from
one single external customers attributable to the

television operations.

During the year ended 31st March 2014, revenues of
approximately HK$20,277,000 and HK$17,481,000
were derived from two single external customers
attributable to the film exhibition and film rights
licensing and sub-licensing segment and television

operations segment respectively.

5 KARSBER G

(c)

(&)

REBEEUERE  FERAEE
R o HUREBREMBEAR
ZHBEFBRERFERBEE (R
BENTzRERMBTARM)
ZEEBMIT

Revenue from

external customers

SHEBER G
2015 2014
“E—-nF —F-nmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExr TET
36,323 44,193
46,164 55,270
13,376 14,273
24,023 31,081
119,886 144,817

BE-E-RF=A=+—HL#E
E A - W2 #21,236,0007% T
DRERBRERERIBZ—F
B—IEEF -

BE=-ZE—NE=A=+—H
LEEHB MEIINARD
20,277,000% T & 17,481,000 %
THRED BIREBBREL MR
REZREREREREIBURE
BRERIBIMEBE—INDPES ©
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(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#)
Non-current assets
(other than interests in
associates
and financial assets)
FERDEE(RBELTZ
RERMBERERD)
2015 2014
-1 —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong =B 358,401 323,870
PRC P E 153,946 172,533
Taiwan =) | 29,131 23,313
Other countries HAbE = 27,939 21,306
569,417 541,022
6 Other gains/(losses)- net 6 Hftk® (BR) — B&
2015 2014
—®-1F —F-nmF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRIT FET
Surplus/(loss) on revaluation of investment  REYEEHREER (E5E)
properties (note 16) (Hia16) 7,603 (7,528)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair RARBEFABRRZHBE
value through profit or loss (note 23(b)) EZAnEWE(KEF230b)) 6,676 4,274
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEENBEEY
financial assets & - 791
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] it E B K E EREE R
financial assets (note 23(a)) (K&t 23(a)) (49) (107)
Gain on disposal of investment in an HEBENTREZ
associate (note 18(d)) Wz (ftat 18(d)) 280 -
14,510 (2,570)
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Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution STASHERAS - HE  BITRMSHE
and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses B RITHEX 2R AT :
are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
—E—-nf —ZE-—mEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories (note 24) TFERA (Kt 24) 1,158 1,873
Reversal of obsolescence of inventories REFERE (fZ24)
(note 24) (114) (356)
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use FHE T # [ + ithfFE AR
rights (note 13) s (M 13) 787 789
Depreciation (note 14) e (e 14)
— owned property, plant and equipment — BEEYE - BBEREE 16,204 14,875
— leased property, plant and equipment — HEWE - HERFE 108 =
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYZ - #WERFRHEZ
equipment (note 33(a)) (W), 18 (#1a 33(a)) (145) 1,013
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) B M 2 HEH (M 17) 16,185 39,077
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15) B EE 2B (HEF15) 201 202
Provision for impairment of film rights EEMERBETPEZRE
(note 17) BB (M 17) 2,082 6,263
Provisions for impairment of trade g 5 EWEERERE
receivables (note 25) (Ha£25) 11,525 789
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETI &
— current year — KREE 1,565 1,523
— under-provision in prior years — BAFERETRE - 97
Direct operating expenses arising from ELEBESWAZRENEZ
investment properties that generate rental BEEREmX (Mt 16)
income (note 16) 1,580 1,354
Distribution commission expenses BITHEMAX 914 843
Employee benefit expenses (including EERABEXZ(BEESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (Hia12) 50,512 39,395
Exchange loss/(gain) EREE () 314 (52)
Marketing and promotion expenses EHREERX 16,542 6,635
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings BFZ&ZHYEE
(note 36(a)) (K1z%36(a)) 8,386 10,492
Production and origination costs SUER R AR A 11,871 10,920
Theatre circuits’ sharing PR G0 IR 10,355 11,935

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &% 117



118

Finance income MHBRA

— Interest income on short-term bank — RERITERZAEWA

deposits

— Interest income on loans to third parties — FE=FERZFEWA
Finance costs MERE

— Interest on loans and overdrafts — BRRBEIZZAE

— Interest element of finance leases — RERELN 2 F EZBH
Finance income/(costs) — net MERA(HE) — B8

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

2015 2014
—E—h8%F —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEIT FET

893 408

428 409

1,321 817
(907) (891)

(9) =

(916) (891)

405 (74)
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taiwan corporate income tax has
been provided at the rate of 17% (2014: 17%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
other countries’ profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.
Current income tax BIHA AT 1S 81
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEREH
— Taiwan corporate income tax — AEDEREHR
— Under-provision in prior years — BAFERETRE
Total current tax ENRARIA#E
Deferred income tax (note 32) IEREPT1S i (Kt 32)
Income tax expense FRiS#RBA

BRI |
8 RIS BB KRR F B 5t AR BRI

HUBE16.5% (ZF—UF : 16.5%)
EHEBE - SBEXMEBRINEAFE
hETERRFER17% (22— F
17%) 1E 3 - H Al B R FH 2 B
AIRBAFEMTRRRABRAER
REEBAERR 2 RITHEE ©

2015 2014
—E—h%F —E—MF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FExT
136 68

263 302

380 47

779 417

243 462

1,022 879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I‘I

10

11

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

BB EwR M

Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Associates’ results reported net of tax

Under-provision in prior years

Tax charge

Loss attributable to owners of the

Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$8,541,000 (2014: HK$2,225,000) (note

29(b)).

Loss per share
(a) Basic

9 FrEMBEAXX =)

M

FRFR S IRATG IR

BRZE16.5% (=&
16.5% )5t E 2 FHi1E
HERTRMEZZE

— PO

BARBIUA
FEMBRAX
WEREZDELEREHREREZ
HIEEE
BABIABERZHIBEREE

SRS N A S (HERTIE)
BEFERERTR

RIARAZ

AEBEZBRAEHAIBE ZHIBERE
KABENEmMtE2 BB =5

2015 2014
—Z-1%F —E—MF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
(39,224) (24,286)
(6,472) (4,007)
(4,197) (2,450)
(3,482) (1,764)

279 2,637
15,654 7,634
(1,034) (1,286)
(106) 68

380 47

1,022 879

11 BSREGE

(a)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing

the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$39,338,000 (2014: HK$23,896,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,633,035,000 (2014: 5,633,035,000) in issue during

the year (note 27).

tEEBEERAE

EF

10 ELXFWB ARESR

ERAQBAUBERREE 2N QAT ES
AFE(EET 125 8,541,0008 T (=ZF— Y
F 12,225,000 B T) (MsE29(b)) °

BREAEEDERADNRERA
FE 1& &5 $839,338,00078 T (= &
— /O £ : 23,896,000 T ) BR KA
FREZRTEBERMEF I

5,633,035,000 & (=
5,633,035,000 f&)stE

Z

= (45T 27) ©
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s per share (Continued)

Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. A calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming exercise of the
share options.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
(HK$’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue (’000)

Adjustment for share options (’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
diluted loss per share ('000)

Diluted loss per share (HK cents)

12 Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments)

11 BREBER @)

(b) W&
SREEEHBNERRCRITLE
RMEFTHBERRERFTEHS
HEELEBRME - ADTRE
RATETRIRAE P I 2 SR > 1
BEEENE UETTRALE
(ERAAARGEEZFHHE
TREE)MEZRPBE o R
BrRHHUECRBRBREET
BG4 T 317 2 IR BB fELL B o

2015
—Z=—RF

RAREE ABMLEE(TET)
(39,338)

BETZERMNELSE(TR)
5,633,035
ThEEREELAE(TR) 492

TESREESIERAZ

@R MEFHE(TIR) 5,633,527
FREEEE GBI 0.70

12 EREBRAAZ(BFEEEH:)

2015 2014

—Z-1F —E-F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Wages and salaries TERFS 38,732 37,002

Social security costs LR EA 2,647 1,852

Pension costs — defined contribution plans  ERIKREMA — REMFEE 651 541
Share-based payment expense (note 28) AR D B B 2 5B

(HtaE 28) 8,482 -

50,512 39,395
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directors’ emoluments) (Cont/nued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFEM&(E)
The remuneration of all directors for the years BEE-_Z-—HFEK-_ZFT—WFE=A
ended 31st March 2015 and 2014 is set out below: =t HILEFEZESECHeH
HlanE
2015 2014
Z8-if “E-[E
Other QOther
emoluments emoluments
- basic - basic
salaries, Pension salaries, Pension
allowances costs Share- allowances costs
andother  ~ defined hased andother - defined
benefits  contribution payment benefits  contribution
Name of Director E5le Fees in kind plans  expenses Total Fees in kind plans Total
Aftie - At -
e ife EZF% ‘ %)
WA mE-RR PEDE] EURAf  HA-RE

it RHHR  HRHD ERR #it B EiE e it
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
&L FET AT FET AT fir TE&r Tér 4

Executive directors UfiEs

Li Kuo Hsing 268 - 4533 18 835 5,386 - 4422 15 4437

Tong Hing Chi ote ()~ BB 1) - 1,038 18 835 2791 - 1690 15 1,708

LiTang Yok frote i) BRI - 3 16 85 1199 - - - -

Dong Ming (note () Rl ) - 1,178 11 835 2024 - - - -

Chau Kei Leung (rote (i)~ BER(#/) - 10 1 - 1 - 905 15 90

Non-executive directors  FH{7ES

Hugo Shong FEE 8 - - 193 7 8 - - )

Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 80 - - 193 m 80 - - 80

Independent non- BUFUTES

executive directors

Lee G. Lam RZE 80 - - 193 m 80 - - 80

Cheung Ming Man E0 ® - - 193 m B - - 5

Guo Yan Jun JRE 80 - - 193 m 80 - - 80

Wang Huarong IE5 4] - - - ki) 80 - - 80

433 8,067 64 4,305 12,869 480 1,017 4 1,542

(i)  None of the directors has waived any of their () BEBRESHEBZE_Z—AF
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st R—Z—ME=A=+—HL
March 2015 and 2014. FEZEMHE -

(i)  The director resigned on 1st May 2014. iy EBA-Z-—HNFHA—H#

£ o
(iiiy  The director was appointed on 1st May 2014. iy EBR-ZT—NFEA—BE
ZE-

(iv) The director was appointed on 1st September vy EER-Z—HNEALA—HBE
2014. FiE -

(v)  The director is also the chief executive officer. (v) BEELRRTHER -
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mployee benefit 'éxpéh'ses _(includihg

directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2014: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining two
(2014: three) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other
benefits in kind &=

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Share-based payment expense

Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000.

During the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2014: two) directors or the two (2014: three)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

of office.

12 RERINX(BEEEMS)

(&)

(b)

BEXFHE  RERHEGBEY

IR RER 2 S FAX

AfisEFHEMAL
FRAEERUESHFMAL
B ZR(CE-NEF CWB)RE
= HMEEREXEN 2R
BRe FRAENHENTFHERE=R
(Z2—WF : =) REHFMAL
ZBEmT

BAEHA — RERUKEE

2015 2014
—E-1¥F —F—nmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TRET
2,775 3,559

18 30

642 —

3,435 3,589

FMWA L 2B <& EA 1,000,001
77T —2,000,000 38 7T °

BE_Z-AFR-FT-NEFE=A
=+ —HLEFE  AEELEG=
HB(CE—NF - WMBESIAMSE
(ZZ2-0OF : ZR)E&SHFHAL
XAME - ERINAREEZRE
HERBBME -
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12 Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong Kong
under the requirement of the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF scheme, the
Group’s contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,250
(from June 2012 to May 2014)/HK$1,500 (from June
2014) per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$466,000 (2014:
HK$453,000).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

12 EREFAZ(BEESEHE)

(&)

(c)

(d)

B & By 3R
rEBCHES(BREESHME)D
HEFEESEWNEMT L 2KB
RBH URKEZEENBME
E o UESFEHRE -

B BRHE

FEBRBEFBEHMELBESTE
HeI(MaESHEARMNDAES
BETRERGEHMEABSHEN([-
BEEED - - REBRBEEE
rEBzHRIREBES T EERM
FIREZEEHEBERAS%TE
FARSAEEESA1,2508T
(ZE—C-FRAZE=ZE—0NFH
A),/ 1,500 (B=8—MNEX
Afe) - B2 HEKRABBE
B 7,100t » Bl ERAERRE
S EMFHEESE MR o RE
FHIIMERIN - REIEMFRATESE
ZE2HBAGETRE > HEEE
FEGSHABRKRFRAL -BES
SR EREREASECEEDH
HYEECESBIYEE - TR
AEBERRES T EMEL 2 HRE
£6 743 466,000 8 T (= F— W& :
453,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(d)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continued)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2015 amounted to HK$85,000 (2014:
HK$89,000).

At 31st March 2015, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme
and contributions totalling HK$ 77,000 (2014:
HK$73,000) and HK$13,000 (2014: HK$14,000)
payable to the MPF Scheme and the Retirement
Scheme respectively were included in the

consolidated balance sheet.

e R RR MR

12 EREFAZ(BEESEHE)

(&)

(d)

BAhEHBIREEGE
REBETFERAERTBARTE(R
REF 8 DEEMR > BIRGTER
REmRES 2R MELEEER
RERMEE ST BRI RBEMNA
BESH B2 EEREBRARER -
BAGFE2EEHBYERAER
ZAEE(E2NEE - RER
hatéE BEIREENES AR
BEEAF SN ELHER(RS
ABEIEE1,500 Bx)  EENE
10 FREEERZEREME
HZ100% #5% » ARTHK2 £9
FRE®R  RERLAZE20%
ZO0%EEMIAR - ELIBRT -
SRR AERAMEE 2 HFK o
HESWEFERASEXNEE
BEREF » AREETEEERE
EEAXTE-—SHR - EREE
—E-RF=A=1+—HILEEZ
REWSERAREZEEMAREAE
($NBRIE W 3k) £ 85,0008 T (=
Z—[U4 : 89,000 B T) °

R-ZE—HF=A=+—H IE
AR A AR 15 R IR B Bl 2 R AR it
2R WA T mEE S E
RERFAEELEZHRDBIEH
77,0008 T(=Z— M : 73,000
7% 7t ) &13,0008 T(=Z & — M
£ 114,000 Bx)EDBIFARE
EESERRA -
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old land and land use rights — 13 ER:MRTMERE —

TTETY Y

Trn .

roup iit- £

2015 2014

k=2 - 2 —Z—MF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R-B-—NFER=ZF-=FMNA—H 28,871 29,660

Amortisation of leasehold land and HELH R b EREE

land use rights (note 7) e (M 7) (787) (789)
At 31st March 2015 and 2014 REZBE—FFR=-Z—NF

=B=+-—H 28,084 28,871

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and

their carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

Held under leases of between RTER+HF2HORFE
10 to 50 years:
In Hong Kong RES
Outside Hong Kong REBEIN

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

AEEBREET R T FERAEZER
BEMKERAIFIE  HIREE D T
T

2015 2014
—T-1¥F —Z2-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
10,010 10,333
18,074 18,538
28,084 28,871




At 1st April 2013
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2014

Opening net book amount
Addtions

Depreciation charge (note 7)
Revaluation surplus (note (a))
Transfers upon completion
Disposals (note 33(a))
Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2014
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2015

Opening net book amount
Addtions

Depreciation charge (note 7)
Revaluation surplus (note (a))
Disposals (note 33(a))
Exchange differences

Closing net hook amount

At 31st March 2015
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

mi3eAe
P EnFemthaAmEn
YTy

il LLE
p

428

R-$-ZFmA-R
i

HE

e

BEsE

HE-8-mEZR=t-R
LEE

ENEEEE

En

fEER MW7)

EftBS (K

NERBER

e e 33

EizE

FRETRE

RZ3-BEZAZt-R
i

s

ZiffiE

BEse

§E-2-1%2R=1-R
LEE

ERATE

1

WEBR(H/)

BB

HEWZ336)

EXZE

FREERE

= SILE
il

i

i

BEsd

wan
.

roperty, plant ah&'éq‘dipment — Grou

" A= TER e
Ha4dd sasZsams
- nEy e ¥ W
14 Y%K  -BBREM — KA
Freghold land Buildings ~ Construction Leasehold Furniture, Motor Total
inprogress  improvements fixtures and vehicles
equipment
KARELH BF ERIE i) fi& KE AR it
HRkE R

HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
& & & & & f&r f&r
- 138,559 - - - - 138,559
- - 17,729 26,650 46919 5919 a7
- - - (15,857) (33732) (4544) (54,133)
- 138,959 17,729 10,793 13,187 1,375 181,643
- 138,559 17,729 10,793 13,187 1375 181,643
16,787 4509 - 12,837 10047 128 44308
- (4,070) - (5,110) (4,940) (755) (14.875)
- 16,122 - - - - 15,122
- - (16,862) 16,862 - - -
- - (867) - - (161) (1,028)
(324) (115) - (264) (59) 3 (759)
16,463 154,005 - 3,118 18,285 590 204,411
- 14,005 - - - - 154,005
16,463 - - 56,025 56,851 5736 135,075
- - - (20,907) (38,616) (5,146) (64,669)
16,463 14,005 - 3,118 18,285 590 204,411
16,463 154,005 - 3,118 18,285 590 24,411
- - - 72 1,330 646 2,702
- (450 - (5,513) (5,741) (556) (16,312)
- 8494 - - - - 8494
- - - - Q) - Q)
(407) (142) - (53 22) 1) (625)
16,056 157,855 - 30278 13,800 679 218,668
- 167,855 - - - - 167,855
16,056 - - 56,684 58,117 5,705 136,562
- - - (26,406) (44317) (5,026) (75,749)
16,056 157,855 - 30278 13,800 679 218,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(@)

Certain leasehold land and land use rights (note 13)
and buildings of the Group situated in Hong Kong
are held by the Group under a lease agreement
dated 25th August 1997 with the Hong Kong
Industrial Estates Corporation (“HKIEC”). The
Group’s interests in the buildings are transferable
subject to the right of first refusal to purchase by
the HKIEC.

The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March
2015 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, on a
depreciated replacement cost basis, which is the
aggregate of the land value in its existing use
and the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. HKIEC merged with two
other corporations in 2001 and is presently known
as Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks

Corporation.

During the year ended 31st March 2015, revaluation
surplus of HK$8,494,000 (2014: HK$15,122,000) has

been charged to the other comprehensive income.

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$91,005,000 (2014:
HK$93,755,000) had they been stated at historical

cost basis.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

14 YR - WBREE — FRE

(&)
(@)

AREBEETHE LMK + thF AR
(MEF1IREFDURES » I
HAEBRER-AAEENA
“+HRBEEBTERAT( T
WAR DT 2 HERZRFE o &
SEEREF BT TFERE  HET
EWAREEELBERER -

B EXEERGEMEMER G
MTERQBARITEEERAEE
BN -—Z2-—RF=A=+—H
EfZSYX2EE  IRERE
Rz tBEEMTRERFE
BERARERBERIEER AN
AR 2REREBLETE - HIER
BRIELEREH 2 EMBRINER
Hip2E WS ARRER 2T
EffEBERN TEXBPLAARN-ZE
—FRSIMEIREH  RES
REBNMEREAR -

RBE-Z-—HFE=A=+—8H
WL E » EfhZ2888,494,000 BT
(ZZ— M4 : 15,122,000 7T )
EEEMEEKENR -

FEBZRBFREBESERE MY
¥ HEBERBEZH I AR
AFHER o fIEFIRE L RAEAET]
8k - B H BRI /8% A& 91,005,000
B (=& —MMEF : 93,755,000 &

JT) °



(Continued)

()

(d)

()

At 31st March 2015, the freehold land and
certain buildings with aggregate carrying value
of HK$21,646,000 (2014: HK$22,283,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 31(a)).

The Group leases a motor vehicle under non-
cancellable finance lease arrangement. The lease
term is 3 years, ownership of the asset lies within
the Group. At 31st March 2015, the carrying amount
of the motor vehicles held under finance leases was
HK$537,500 (2014: nil).

Depreciation expense of HK$16,312,000 (2014:
HK$14,875,000) has been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement
(note 7).

.....

14 W% BEREE — 2@

(#)
(c)

W ¥ WY

R-EB-HAF=A=+t—-R'#&
BRE {8 /21,646,000 BT (=%
— U4 @ 22,283,000 ) 2 & F
KAEEL R ETEFEHEIFE
AEEBEMERBITEEZER
(MtzE31(a)) °

AEEREFTHFERMERERY
HE-—WSE  -HEHMA=F &
EZHERBAEE -HN_T—1H
F=ZRA=+—RB REMNEESH
B2 REZREER 537,500 T
(ZZ—mF  |\) o

#ER % 16,312,000 BT (=F

— P04 : 14,875,00058 7T) B 5F A
HBEWBERZITEHAZA(MEE?)
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FrERNE. L ::L.-
ntangible assets — Group Lt
At 1st April 2013 p=Z-Z£MmA-H
Cost A
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ~ Z3HE#RHE
Net book amount REBE

Year ended 31st March 2014

Opening net book amount
Amortisation charge (note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2015

Opening net book amount
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37)
Amortisation charge (note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2015
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

HE-Z-MEZA=1+-H
LEE

ENREFE

BEERWZ7)

FRETBE

RZS-MEZA=+-H
A
ZitB#RAE

IRE#E

§EX-Z2-5f¥=A=1+-H
LEE

ENEETEE

WiE—BHE AR (2 37)

BHBRME7)

FRETBE

RZB-E%ZA=1+-H
A
EHE )

BESE
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15 |MILEE — F%KH
Contractual
supplier
Goodwill relationships Licences Total
&
[} ] AR it it
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 A7 &7 T
- 4,000 605 4,605
- (4,000) (202) (4,202)
- - 403 403
- - 403 403
- - (202) (202)
- - 201 201
- 4,000 605 4,605
- (4,000) (404) (4,404)
- - 201 201
- - 201 201
146 - - 146
- - (201) (201)
146 - - 146
146 4,000 605 4,751
- (4,000) (605) (4,605)
146 - - 146
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Contractual supplier relationships arise from acquisitions
by the Group in 2008 were recognised in the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st March 20009.

Management assessed the recoverable amounts of
contractual supplier relationships by estimating the
cash flows expected to be generated from the acquired
businesses and determined to make full impairment
provision against the contractual supplier relationships in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2009.

Licences of HK$605,000 which arose from acquisition by
the Group in 2012 were recognised in the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2013.

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a subsidiary during
the year and is allocated to the group’s cash-generating

unit (“CGU”) identified according to business segments.

Investment properties — Group

At fair value RARE
At 1st April 2014 and 2013
Surplus/(loss) on revaluation (note 6)
Exchange differences EHERE
At 31st March 2015 and 2014
=ZA=+—H

RN-E—NMER-FT—=FNHF—H
EhAR(BE)(Kte)

R-E—HFR-ZF—NF

15 | EE — *£B (%)

AREER-—ZENFETZIWBELE
ZENHERBERZERBE-ZZTNTF
ZAZtT-HUEFEZGSMBRRE

=
R

EEEEBAMTRBRBREPELEZ
BRERBAMENMHERRBER ZTRE
HE - WRERSNHERBEREE
“EEAFZRAZT-RLFEZRS
B IR RAF 2 BORE R -

AEBR-_ZE——_FHEITZWEMESE
Z IR 605,000 BTEREBEEZE=-_Z—=
F=ZA=1+-—HIEFEZHEUWHERK
R o

FAEDRFARE-—BNBARAKE
£ URBREARERBERED HDEE
ZREELBEN(REELEM] -

16 WEAME — K

2015 2014
—ZE—h%F —E—MF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
215,994 223,501
7,603 (7,528)
(22) 21
223,575 215,994
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nvestment properties —

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

HEWA (KL 5)

Rental income (note 5)

Direct operating expenses arising from E4£HEERAZ

investment properties that generate REVEMEEZ
BELKERI(MiE7)

rental income (note 7)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer who
held a recognized relevant professional qualification to
determine the fair value of the investment properties as at
31 March 2015 and 2014. For all investment properties,
their current use equates to the highest and best use.
The following table analyses the investment properties

carried at fair value, by valuation method.

The valuation gains or losses is included in other gains/
(losses) — net in consolidated income statement (note
6). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and

3 during the year.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

16 BEAME — FEH =

Group (Continued)

sRss=
TR TEANAYYY
| Ll Ak
¥ "

UT£BEERRENMEMNGE RER
'R

2015 2014
—E—HE —E—-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
9,499 7,045
1,580 1,354

AEEZRENERFTHER Y 2
EEERCBUEXSERMEMER
BRI T AR A RETELLE - K
BEREMENR-"Z-LFER-ZF—N
FZA=+T—-HZARE BAERE
MEMES  HRTHAZRERERSRE
ERE - TREMGREZEHUQIAETIR
ZEREMRETOM -

EfREREREERGaRERZH
fllzs,(B518) — FH(MIEE6) - A&
EeBRANREJEB 2 EHRBERE
LtERRIAABRBER 2EALE
e REERWEE - FoMRE
=Bz ER -




Recurring fair value measurements
Investment properties:
— Commercial units - located in Hong Kong
— Commercial units - located in the PRC
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong
— Residential units - located in Hong Kong

— Residential units - located in the PRC

Fair value measured at 31 March 2015 using

RIB-EFZAZ+-RELZLREHE

Significant Significant
other observable unobservable
inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
KtEX Ex
TRREE FURRRE
(=8 ($=#) st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
ERMAAEHE
REM=
- BXEN - UREE 12,700 - 12,700
- BEEN — URTE 67,600 - 67,600
- T¥B( - URER 81,200 14,255 95,455
- REE - URER 44,900 - 44,900
- FEEN — URTE 2,920 - 2,920
209,320 14,255 223,575
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(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Contmued)

(a) DRERWE)

Fair value measured at 31 March 2014 using

R-B-BE=A=T-RELZAAMEHE

Significant Significant
other observable unobservable
inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HER BX
TEEHE TUBRYE
(E=&) (5=8) @t
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000
A7 &7 FEr
Recurring fair value measurements EEMARENE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — BEEf — LREHS 13,700 - 13,700
— Commercial units - located in the PRC ~ — B%EB i — [iAHE 66,900 - 66,900
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — T¥&fi — UREE 75,000 13,834 88,834
— Residential units - located in Hong Kong ~ — B8 — RES 43,600 - 43,600
— Residential units - located in the PRC - FEEN — URPE 2,960 - 2,960
202,160 13,834 215,994
Fair value measurements using EHEXFRRBEN 2015 2014
significant unobservable inputs LRERE —ZE—1F —ZE-NF
(Level 3) (B=8) HK$’000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R-B-—NER-E—=F
H—H 13,834 12,921
Revaluation gains credited to FTAGE W ER 2 E MG
consolidated income statement 421 913
At 31st March 2015 and 2014 R-ZE—HFR_ZF—NF
=ZA=+—H 14,255 13,834

134 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &5 2

HEAEEERAT



mi3eAe
P EnFemthaAmEn
YTy

Group (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s finance department reviews the
valuations performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the chief
financial officer and senior management for
discussions in relation to the valuation processes

and the reasonableness of valuation results.

For commercial units located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, the valuation was determined using the basis
of open market value. For industrial units located
in Hong Kong, the valuation was determined by
adoption of depreciated replacement cost basis due

to the lack of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sq. m and depreciation rate of 2.25%. These
assumptions are estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the property being valued. The
higher the construction unit cost, the higher the fair
value. The higher the depreciation rate, the lower

the fair value.

16 BEAME — FEH =

(a)

TEN TEANATAY
C] *Ea *ak
! .V

LREREE)

REE 2 B AR BB E R E R TN
TERD AP BRE REMET
ZfhfE - ZEHESRAKRBAM
BRARSEEEASZE - U
HEBERMMEZR 2SEMET

BRUREBERDE2EEENM
5 REDEARHEREEEE -
RREBZIXENME @ BRZ
AEzmBER  EDRIFEE
ERAEERE °

RAFTEEERAGEEMEZ
EATABRHBEANEBERK
11,0008 T 2 B EE N KA K
225% 2 EE - WERERHM
BRI E Y 3 2 BB AR A
fhet e BRBURAHS 0 ARE
S TEXRES - DABEMIK -
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t properties — Group

(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at (b) AEERHEEEYIRZREYE
their carrying amounts are analysed as follows: ERIWMAOT :
2015 2014
—E—RF —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
In Hong Kong, held under: REBR  RTIENEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +TERTEZEY 153,055 146,134
Outside Hong Kong, held under: RBEBIEIN  RTIELOEFES
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +Z2RE+EZEY 70,520 69,860
223,575 215,994

RIET AR E BBz AR
RIEEEREEHRNHFE36(D)

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases are set out in note
36(b).

R-ZE—HF=A=+—H " kH
#{H%59,155,0008 T (=ZF—
F 63,634,000 8 T) 2 ETHRE
MECSERIERANEEFTERERT
FEEZER(ME31(@)I) ©

certain investment (c)

(c) At 31st March 2015,
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$59,155,000 (2014: HK$63,634,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to

the Group (note 31(a)(i)).

136 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al
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17 Film rights, films in progress and film 17 EFNE - BEHPERERES
royalty deposits — Group MigxRe — x5£H
Film
Film Films in royalty

rights progress deposits Total

BEXNE RBERER EXNEReE #at

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000

At 1st April 2013 R-E—=%£MA—AH
Cost B 831,506 5,323 4,281 841,110
Accumulated amortisation and ~ EiH# R RE

impairment (791,642) (2,771) - (794,413)
Net book amount REEE 39,864 2,552 4,281 46,697

Year ended 31st March 2014 HE_E—ME=A=+—H

LLEE

Opening net book amount FYERMEFE 39,864 2,552 4,281 46,697
Additions 0 40,651 2,813 26,836 70,300
Transfers B 7,405 (2,280) (5,125) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BEBRME7) (39,077) — — (39,077)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBRMEZ7) (6,263) - - (6,263)
Exchange differences fE =58 (77 (35) - (112)
Closing net book amount FRIFESE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545
At 31st March 2014 R-ZE—NFE=A=+—H
Cost %N 879,298 5,821 25,992 911,111
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZFT#sE R FE

impairment (836,795) (2,771) — (839,566)
Net book amount IRERE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545

Year ended 31st March 2015 #®HE—_E—AF=A=1+—H

LFEE

Opening net book amount FHRMFE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545
Additions 2 hn 41,250 4,108 461 45,819
Transfers R 2,956 (2,551) (405) -
Amortisation charge (note 7) BHER (E7) (16,185) - - (16,185)
Impairment charge (note 7) WEER(HEZ7) (2,082) = = (2,082)
Exchange differences R =S (143) (1) ) (153)
Closing net book amount FRIFESE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944
At 31st March 2015 R-E—-RFE=A=+—H
Cost B A 923,309 7,377 26,039 956,725
Accumulated amortisation and &t KR E

impairment (855,010) (2,771) - (857,781)
Net book amount IRERE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

17

18

Film rights, films in progress and film
royalty deposits — Group (Continued)
(@) Amortisation charge of HK$16,185,000 (2014: (a)
HK$39,077,000) with respect to film rights has been
included in cost of sales in the consolidated income

statement (note 7).

(b) The carrying amounts of film rights and films in (b)
progress have been reduced to their recoverable
amounts through recognition of provision for
impairment losses of HK$2,082,000 (2014:
HK$6,263,000) which has been included in cost of

sales in the consolidated income statement (note 7).

() At 31st March 2015, government grant of (c)
NTD4,200,000 (equivalent to HK$1,063,000) was
deducted from the additions of film rights for

subsidising film making.

Interests in associates — Group

At 1st April 2014 and 2013

MA—H
Incorporation of an associate o BR SL B A A
Disposal of an associate HEHENF
Exchange differences W=
Share of profits/(losses) FEAE R (&18)

Amounts due from associates (note (b))  FEULEEZE N TFRIE (M5F (b))
Less: Provision for impairment of amounts J& - FEUREEE N T B R E B E

(Bte£ ()

due from associates (note (c))

Less: current portion of amounts due from & : FEURHEEAE N TR IER B2

associates

At 31st March 2015 and 2014 RIE-—RER-ZE—OF

17 BRNRE - BERIPERCRER
RigEe — xKE8 (=)

B SR 216,185,000/ T
(ZZF — M4 : 39,077,000 7t )
BHEBACTH ARERERZHE
A (BEE7) o

&

YRERBREPEY ZREAED
FIB R EE B 2,082,000
BT(=Z— M 6,263,000 %
T)REHAKEHE  HESE
BECHAGRERERZHERS
(MIEE7) °

R=ZB-HEF=ZF=+—-B ' &
K3 % B 4,200,000 % & % (1 & R
1,063,000 % Jt ) 278 B B & i fE
Rk - ERNESRE -

18 MBELNFIZHEZ — s5KH

2015 2014
—E—-5LfF —E—-OF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
1,890 773

— 1,556

(361) —

(41) (39)

640 (401)
33,706 38,150
(31,085) (31,085)
4,749 8,954
(2,621) (7,064)
2,128 1,890
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in associates — Group (Continved) 18 REEATZEE "t&m

(#&)

(@) Set out below is the associate of the Group as (@) UTRHIN=B—RF=P=+—
at 31st March 2015, which in the opinion of the B EERAUAEEMSBEEKXR
directors, is material to the Group. The associates ZAREBERENT] o THIBE AT
as listed below have share capital consisting solely ZERAERAEEEESE2EB
of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the BRARRK ; MR 2B Z B R IR
Group; the country of incorporation or liquidation is AEFTEEMT -
also their principal place of business.

Place of Percentage
business/country of ownership Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation interest Nature of the relationship method
ERuE/ hFREE
ERsR EMEIER EEEAL REHE Hy 0%
Hongkongmovie.com Company  Hong Kong 49% The associate provides playout, post production, Equity
Limited (“HKM?) HD-film restoration and channel management
services to the Group.
EREVARERLA(EAREY B ZHENAMARERIEY - RBRE - [ 5
agl BEEYBERERERRE
HKM is an unlisted limited liability company in Hong ERERRKRA—BEBELTE
Kong and there is no quoted market price available FRAR - HIRMILETSRE
for its shares.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the BIEAMEEAREE A E D B E
Group’s interests in associates. mZRABE o
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in associates — Group (Continved) 18 WEEBEXFZEE — FKRE

(#&)
Summarised financial information for material EXBEAFRZHMBERHBE
associate
Set out below is the summarised financial information for LUTHIEET RS RKRRAERE
HKM which are accounted for using the equity method. AR EERME o LITERRBR
The information below reflects the amounts presented in BENRPERRAEN L5 — K
the financial statements of the associate — no difference SEEZBENRZEABERLET
in accounting policies between the Group and the E
associate.
Summarised balance sheet BEAREREE 2015 2014
ot 2k % 3 —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 7,267 9,740
Current assets RENEE 44,126 27,659
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,067) (1,458)
Current liabilities nREEE (49,014) (39,191)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE(BE)FHE 1,312 (3,250)
Revenue & 26,074 25,495
Profit for the year from continuing operation #FE&E £ 2 F R FB 4,578 3,535
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hih2m(EE) ks (16) 21
Total comprehensive income 2HUNEEZE 4,562 3,556
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terests in associates — Group (Continued) 18 REELATZIER — F&H
(#&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MESHBEZHIE
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of P25 EEHE N[ 2 K& Rl Z e
the material associate presented to the carrying value of AEBRBENRZERZREBEZY
the Group’s interest in associates. R o

2015 2014
—E-51fF —Z—MmF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRIT FET
Opening net liabilities at 1st April 2014 and RA=ZE—NER-E—=4

2013 MA—HZENEEFR (3,250) (6,806)
Profit for the year FRFHE 4,578 3,535
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hib2mE(EE) W= (16) 21
Closing net assets/(liabilities) R-ZE—HFR-Z—NF

at 31st March 2015 and 2014 ZA=t+-RZEKREE/

(BfE)FH 1,312 (3,250)
Interest of 49% (2014: 49%) in associate  REFZE N T2 49%

(note (i) (ZZ—MF : 49%) (K17 (i) 640 -
Interests in other associates (note (i) RE MRS N B 2w (A (i) 1,488 1,890
Carrying value as at 31st March 2015 and R-ZE—HFER=-F—NF

2014 ZA=t—-RZKRHEE 2,128 1,890
(i) During the year ended 31st March 2015, the () MREBEE-Z-—HF=A=+—HI

Group has not recognised profit amounting to FE AEBIEFNETESER
HK$1,603,000 (2014: profit of HK$1,732,000) & FE SR AI1HM 1,603,000 T(==
for HKM. At 31st March 2015, there were no — g4 : F3581,732,00058 5T ) °
accumulated losses not recognised (2014: R-E—HF=A=+—H #HE
accumulated losses not recognised were AERZRFBE(ZZ—TF
HK$1,603,000). REER > R 5185 1,603,00058

JT) °
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18 MBELQFIZHER — FKHE

(#&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information HERHEBIEZHIE
(Continued)
(i) Aggregate information of other associates (i) RUBRELEZEHEH
Set out below is the Group’s share of results of LT &SR EE FEL L FEE R E R
other associates that are not individually material. 2 HMBE N T2 EE o
2015 2014
—E—hf —E-—mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit/loss for the year from continuing &KL EE 2 FRFE,
operation BB - (401)
Other comprehensive income FREMEAENSE
for the year - (39)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZENE (FBE)HBE
for the year - (440)

(b) The amounts due from associates are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(c) The Group’s provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates are as follows:

At 1st April 2013, 31st March 2014 and
2015

(d) In September 2014, the Group disposed of all its
22.7% interests in ¥EFERRMHDER A T ([FHE=
%), an associate of the Company, with net book
value of NTD1,429,000 (equivalent to HK$361,000)
for a consideration of NTD2,535,000 (equivalent to
HK$641,000), resulting in gain on disposal of NTD
1,106,000 (equivalent to HK$280,000).

142 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

R-ZF-=%NMA—H"
—E-NER=-F-IHF
ZA=t—H

PRI E R B RELGBLIE - B
HIRR  REREEEESRD -

REEEWHE N RRIBRERS
LU

2015 2014
—E-1F —F-nmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExr TET
31,085 31,085

R-Z-—WFEAA AEEHE
KRBz —EBELT — e
ZRBRHERAT(HHEEZR D)
ZEHRT%ER REAEA
1,429,000 % & ¥ (FHE 7 361,000
Bir) o mHEARE 52,535,000 %
A (FHEMR641,00087T) » EFY
& 2 U3 1,106,000 3 & # (48
&4 280,00087T) °
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operations — Group

(@) Interest in a joint venture — Group

Interest in a joint venture, at cost
(note (i)

Share of loss (note (ii)

Amount due from a joint venture

Less: Provision for impairment of

amount due from a joint venture

terests in a joint venture and joint

n TEN
]

HAMI FasEsame

Y  WET
2y LR &

19 RABATIRAEEE
wa -

s
F5KE

(a) REBLFRZHEE — FRE

REERT 2B BEA
(B (i)
PR S48 (A (i)
Bl —BEE R TKE
o BREEARFIRRE
B

2015 2014
—E—-hf —E-—mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,083 1,083
(1,083) (1,083)
22,333 22,333
(22,333) (22,333)

(i) This represents the Group’s 70% equity (i)

interest in Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Video

Production Company Limited (“Tung Ah”). It

is unlisted liability company in the PRC. The

Group’s control over Tung Ah is restricted

by a provision in the joint venture agreement

that requires unanimous approval by all

directors present for certain major decisions,

notwithstanding the Group having a majority

equity interest and the ability to appoint the

majority of directors. Accordingly, in the

opinion of the directors, the Group does not

have unilateral control over Tung Ah and

the equity method is used to account for its

investment therein.

The directors are of the opinion that the joint

venture is not material to the Group at 31st

March 2015 and 2014.

WRBRE AR KB EERR
DEGBERARAFAIR
DD70%RE-ZDAR
PEIZFLEHEELQR - K
SERRDZEHEZAE
B — IRIRSCRR - 5] 83
FEBHEFERNBORER
AEERZHES BEFT
EEREARERERHEZE
E-HtE Bk EBR
R AEBUTEEBERT 2
EREEGE AR
AEAEEEZARZRE

ESRAN-ZT—HFR=
E-ME=A=1+—H"' &
SELREAEEME LR
BEKXo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

19 Interests in a joint venture and joint
operations — Group (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest in a joint venture — Group (Continued)

(i) At 31st March 2015 and 2014, Tung Ah was
in a net liabilities position and the Group
has shared its loss up to the extent of its
investment cost of HK$1,083,000.

(iiiy There are no contingent liabilities and
commitment relating to the Group’s interest in
a joint venture. Also the Group did not have
commitment relating to its joint venture at 31st
March 2015 and 2014.

Interests in joint operations — Group

During the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014,
the Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements with certain independent third parties
to produce films for exhibition and distribution in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

In November 2009, the Group entered into a joint
operation with HBO Pacific Partners v.o.f. (“HBO”)
to develop, operate and distribute a pay television
channel to be broadcasted in various countries
within Asia. The Group has participating interests of
40% of results in this joint operation. It has included
its interests in the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses in the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the terms of agreement for the
year ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

19 1

SELNFIREERNZ

B8 — X580 »)

(a)

(b)

REBELFIZEE — *KE (&)

iy REZE—HAFR=-Z=-—NF
ZR=t+—H RuEENF
BEMRR MAKEEEUH
& & X 7~1,083,000 % 7T &
EEEE -

(i) MEBEEIMAEBELAEEREE
DA ZERZAARBERE
E-R=ZZ-HFRK=-F
—UFE=A=+—H ' ' K&
BT EEMEEELEE QT
IR o

REEXBZHEE — %M
REBE-Z—RFR-_Z—NF=
B=+—HBIEFE r AEBHHEZE
TBYE=ZAFTNETEEEBLR
B NEHEEZ R E R R P EIRR
K17 o

R=ZZEAF+-A &K
8 HBO Pacific Partners
v.o.f. [HBONETE&E XK » &£
DNZERRAE  RERDH—
BEREERIEE - AEERILEE
EBEBAONXEE2SHER
BEERBEHDZHRANRBE_ZF
—AFER-Z-NF=ZA=1t—H
LFERNGREVBBRERAZEE
BB WakBEX s -
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Unlisted shares, at cost (note (a))

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b))

Capital contributions relating to

share-based payment (note (d))

Less: Provision for impairment of amounts

due from subsidiaries (note (c))

terests in subsidiaries — Company

e
e SEFER. EN
H4U3 Beemsame n *Hs

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

In prior years, the Group decided to make a
provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$233,885,000 after taking into
account of the subsidiaries’ business developments,
financial positions and other factors. There are no
movements for the Group’s provision for impairment
of amounts due from subsidiaries for the years
ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.

The capital contribution relating to share based
payment relates to options granted by the company
to employees of subsidiaries undertakings in the
Group. Refer to Note 28 for further details on the

Group’s share option schemes.

(a)

(b)

e re nEr "w ¥ T
20 PMEBARZER — X2F

2015 2014

—E—5F —E—MF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

EETBRD - AR A (a) 46,010 46,010

FE Uk Bt 8 X B FRIB (B aE (b)) 647,537 650,659

DRt BEEZ IR EEZ 3,144 =
EE (BrE(d)

696,691 696,669

JB - PEURRT B A R SR IE R B R e (233,885) (233,885)
(Kt& (c))

462,806 462,784

FEM B R aFREERNR GRS IR
FHFEE40 ©

FE W Bft 1B 2 R RRIR LA B ST R EE AL
KT REREETERY -

EBAFE  AEERERMEA
AzEBRRE - BHEMRR Rt
HE%  REREUKE R RRIE
{E iR {8 3% % 233,885,000 /8 7T ©
BE-Z—HER-_ZF—MNFE=A
St+—HLFE  TEBEEKHE
RAREZRHEREHESS -

BEURNDABER N REEZTE
REARARTAKENBATE
T2ERE - AEEBRESSZ
E-SHITFESHMEE28 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%

145



146

p and Comp‘arr':

Group

Assets

At 31st March 2015

Available-for-sale financial
assets (note 23(a))

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates
(note 18)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(note 23(b))

Pledged bank deposits
(note 22(b))

Cash and cash equivalents
(note 26)

-

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

been applied to the line items below:

RE

RZB-EF¥=A=1+-H
AftHENKEE
(H15t23(a)
BE REMERHRE
BB NRRE
(£ 18)
BAREFARSRZ
MBEE (M 23)

SERFRITER
(Hfat22b)

RERERREER
(Hiz26)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

21

FRERELF

BRNBSZ M

BBEITAECEHABRRCERARTS

HIE :
(a) #KHE
Financial
Available- assets at
for-sale fair value
Loans and financial through
receivables assets profit or loss Total
BORE
HERER AHHE HARER
ERRE HERE ZHBEE - hy
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET F#T F#ET
- 6,149 - 6,149
30,780 - - 30,780
2,621 - - 2,621
— - 40,367 40,367
23,500 - - 23,500
32,074 - - 32,074
88,975 6,149 40,367 135,491
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ory — 21 BEHNIZMEIR —

------

roup and Company (Continued) EXKERELB (@)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) F&KEZE)
Financial
Available- assets at
for-sale fair value
Loans and financial through
receivables assets  profit or loss Total
BARE
EXR AfEE  HABEXR
PR BHEE  2HKEE @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi7x FE FE FET
Assets RE
At 31st March 2014 R-Z-MFE=A=+—-H
Available-for-sale financial TR ENBEE
assets (note 23(a)) (H1&£23(a)) - 3,029 - 3,029
Trade and other receivables B RHMEKTE 22,429 = = 22,429
Amounts due from associates ~ JEWHE N AIFRE
(note 18) (Hiz£18) 7,064 - - 7,064
Financial assets at fair value BAAEFABERZ
through profit or loss MBEE Mz 23(b)
(note 23(b) - - 35,833 35,833
Pledged bank deposits BIEARITER
(note 22(b)) (B3t 22(b) 23,500 - - 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBRLER
(note 26) (fet26) 74,259 - - 74,259
127,252 3,029 35,833 166,114
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roup and Company (Continued) FEREREAF (7)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) F&KEZE)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BREEEE
FIRZ
MBEaR
HK$’000
FEIT
Liabilities &

At 31st March 2015 BR-ZE—hF=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 31(a)) B8 (KfzL31(a)) 52,787
Obligations under finance leases (note 31(b)) BEMNEE (K7L 31(b)) 419
Trade and other payables (note 30) & 5 & HAFEM FRIE (B2 30) 64,402
117,608

At 31st March 2014 R-E—MNME=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 31(a)) BE (M 31(a) 32,182
Trade and other payables (note 30) B 5 Kk H At FE(TFRIE (A7 30) 67,196
99,378
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roup and Company (Contlnued) EEMBELT ®)
(b) Company (b) F2F

Loans and

receivables

HBRER
R HIA
HK$’000
FHET
Assets EE
At 31st March 2015 R-E—AF=A=1+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20) JE UK R B 1 R FRIE (Mt 20) 413,652
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) ReRERBREEE (M7£26) 10
413,662
At 31st March 2014 R-E—MFE=A=1+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20) FEURH B A B FRE (AL 20) 416,774
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) BeRERBREER (M7 26) 13
416,787
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inancial instruments by

cat_egory';'
Group and Company (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

21

sRss=
TR TEANAYYY
| Ll Ak
¥ "

BERNSZHBIR —
XEERELF #)
(b) FLF(#E)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BB E
FEZ
HBEAR
HK$’000
FET
Liabilities aiR

At 31st March 2015 R _E—RFE=RA=+—H
Other payables (note 30) H{th {5 7R I8 (A1 27 30) 219

At 31st March 2014 R-E—MFE=A=+—H
Other payables (note 30) HL{th & S TR I8 (K75E 30) 141

22 Credit quality of financial assets — 22 MBEEECEHER —
Group and Company XEBRELT

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

(@) Trade receivables — Group

Counterparties without external WIS BT R ZE

credit rating

— Existing customers with no — BEVEERALEZ
defaults in the past HERPE

150 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

EMABHABREZHBEEZFEER
A2ENBEEFR(NB)XBEEYE S
R R 2 BEEREITE -

(a) WHEHRRE — FKRE

2015 2014
Z®-1F —E-NF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
TET FET
4,971 4,418
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22 MBEEZENER —

dit quality of financial assets —

Group and Company (Continued) EXKERELB (@)
(b) Pledged bank deposits — Group (b) BEHSBTER — F£ME
2015 2014
—Z-1F —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {=&:T4&k (EELH)

A-1 A-1 23,500 23,500
Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st R-E—FRE=A=+—HLUBTT
March 2015 represent fixed term deposits placed in BENERIEEHNE BEEE
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged T ESES  CEBEARER
against the banking facilities granted to the Group. FIERIRITEEZER - ZZ2H>
Please refer to note 31(a)(iii) for further details of the #— S E 2 B EE 31(a)(iii) ©
arrangement.
At 31st March 2015, the weighted average effective R-E—FRE=HB=+—H &&
interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged B KRR TR 2 I R
bank deposits is 0.5% (2014: 0.8%). FERNEBOSE(ZZ—MME : 0.8
E) -
(c) Cash and cash equivalents — Group and (c) ReRERBEELEE — s£HR
Company EATF
Group Company
*5%E 47
2015 2014 2015 2014

-1 —"Z-NmF CZE-HE "—T—@OF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FEx FET FET
Credit rating (Standard & {EHFR(FELEH)
Poor’s)
A-1 A-1 29,146 69,540 10 13
A-2 A-2 2,532 4,469 - -
Cash on hand ERES 396 250 - -
32,074 74,259 10 13

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &% 151



152

TEEYY Y

At 1st April 2014 and 2013

Fair value gains/(losses) transfer

to equity

At 31st March 2015 and 2014

Available-for-sale financial assets

include the following:

Equity securities listed in Hong
Kong, at market value
Equity securities listed in US, at

market value

Market value of listed securities

Available-for-sale financial assets — Group

(a)

R-B-—NER=-ZF—=F
mA—A
BREER D RERS
/(&)

RZE-—RFR-Z—WF
=B=+—H

AHHENBEERETIRE

BBLEHRAES  BZHE

B EHRAES  BHE

th@EFzmE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

HHEMERE — %M

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FExT
3,029 9,146
3,120 6,117)
6,149 3,029
6,149 2,980

- 49

6,149 3,029




sl N “‘
-n=::‘on?ug3 ”ﬁig — *;m?g) 4

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets — Group (a) TIHHHEMESEE — *%KHZ)
(Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated THEEMBEEEUT I E LT
in the following currencies: B :
2015 2014
—E—hF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
HK$ BT 6,149 2,980
USD ESp — 49
6,149 3,029
During the year ended 31st March 2015, the Group BHE-Z-—-HAF=A=+—H1
made an impairment of HK$49,000 on available- FER  AEERAEHEREE
for-sale financial assets (2014: HK$107,000). The EEHRE 49,0008 T (=& — M
amount was released from equity and recognised £ :107,000/875) c RIBEHER
in other gain/(loss) — net in the consolidated income BEE o WHGREWER 2 HE MU
statement (note 6). S(E1E) —FEERA(MEe) °
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inancial assets — Group (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

1] e
Y rYy Y
TEERNE.

dpEe B

23

loss — Group

At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R-E—NMER-_Z—=F

A—H
Disposals HE
Fair value gains (note 6) AREWE (AEE6)

At 31st March 2015 and 2014 RIE-—NER_ZT—=

MA—H

At 31st March 2015, all of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and denominated in HK$ (2014:
same), except for a balance of HK$822,000 (2014:
671,000) which is equity securities listed in UK
and denominated in USD. At 31st March 2015, the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are stated at their market values (2014: same).

At 31st March 2015, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$18,410,000 (2014:
HK$13,876,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31(a)
(iv)).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

sEasm ;
A NA Y

"= “Es AR
MEEE — x%8 =)
(b) BRAAREHABEZZIHMERE
—5H
2015 2014
—E=-5HfF —Z—MF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
35,833 32,722
(2,142) (1,163)
6,676 4,274
40,367 35,833

R=—ZF-HEF=A=+—-8 fr
ERAARBEFABRRZUKE
ENABEBLTRAZERUSB
RABN(ZF—NEF : HE) - #
#££822,000 EBT(ZF—MF :
671,000 7T ) HAEE Lz iR
AESRUEZTAEN - R=F
—EF=ZA=+—H  BRARMES
ABRRZUBEEREMEIIER
(ZZ—F : #HE) °

RZZB-HAF=ZA=1t—H  kH
#{E5418,410,000/8 T (== — Y
113,876,000 Bit)zETRA
REFABSERZYBEEEC KA
ERAEEMERRITEEZER
(M#EE 31(a)(iv)) ©
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ancial assets — Group (Continued)
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss - Group (Continued)

Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$6,676,000 (2014: gains
of HK$4,274,000) has been included in other gains/
(losses) — net in the consolidated income statement

(note 6).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on

their current bid prices in an active market.

24 Inventories — Group

Finished goods SR
Less: provision for obsolete B REFERE
inventories

Inventories mainly comprise audio visual products. The
cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement
amounted to HK$1,158,000 (2014: HK$1,873,000) (note
7). A reversal of provisions for HK$114,000 (2014:
HK$356,000) for obsolescence of inventories has been
included in cost of sales in the consolidated income
statement (note 7). In addition, HK$2,008,000 (2014: nil)
of fully impaired inventories were written off during the

year.

23 MBEE — KB @)
b) BARBHABRSRZHBERE
— XMW (F)
BARBEHANBRRZBBEES
NR{EWF 6,676,000 BIT(==
—PO& : Wi 4,274,000 BT)E
HAGAWBERZ HEbE (5
18) — FH(ME6) o

FERARZ 2 AARBERBENE
BhmiBcRITEANETE -

24 8 — &x5H
2015 2014
—B-H5F —S-WF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FEx
3,901 5,961
(3,757) (5,879)
144 82

FETZERETER BRAAMAX
Wit ARERBERBEEREZFEK
X 51,158,000 T(= & — I F:
1,873,00078 T ) (Mf &£7) - W &E @
114,000 8Tt (=& — M4 : 356,000 /&
TEFAGRENER ZHERR (I
7) ° It Hh > 2,008,000 T(= & —
FE)Z2HABEFEERERME
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Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of

trade receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments

Other receivables and deposits

Less: Other receivables and deposits

— non-current portion

Current portion

Trn .

82 BUWKIE
. BR RWSIERERE

B 5 ERHE — F
e
HfEREER ES

o BtEWRIER RS —
FRBED

RENER D

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables approximate to their fair values due to their

short maturities or carry at floating interest rates (2014:

same).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

. .
25 BERAMBHRE-F%E

2015 2014
—E-5EF —2-@F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHT
46,323 29,927
(34,910) (23,385)
11,413 6,542
744 698
18,623 15,189
30,780 22,429
(5,960) (6,270)
24,820 16,159

HRASEE S RHEtEYREZ 2B
RERRFHANRTE - WAKRBESA
HAAEBEMRZE(ZZ—0NF : #E) °
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de and other receivables — Group
(Continued)
At 31st March 2015, trade and other receivables

are unsecured and interest-free, except for an other
receivable of HK$5,138,000 (2014: HK$5,425,000) which
is interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2%
per annum (2014: same) and secured by (i) first legal
charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value of
approximately HK$14,437,000 (2014: HK$13,063,000);
and (ii) a separate all moneys guarantee and indemnity
executed by a third party individual (2014: same),
of which HK$4,830,000 (2014: HK$5,138,000) is not
repayable within the next twelve months as at the

balance sheet date.

The Group’s credit terms to trade receivables generally

range from 7 to 90 days (2014: same).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on due

date is as follows:

Current to 3 months ENERZE =1 B
4 to 6 months HZ 5@ A

Over 6 months BB A A

25 5 R 3 fit P B 0E —

*EH
(&)
R-ZZE-—HEF=A=+—H B
REMERAEABEAREE
5,138,000 (= T — F:
5,425,000 T ) 2 H fil f& I X &
DEREBREEFNEMEC=ZS
—WE: BE)FE TUGDARE
# 514,437,000 T(= F — M F :
13,063,000/ 0) 2 B BYHEZE — %
BT R(NE=ZABIALELIZE
Y2HEERRBERB(ZZ—NEF
R {EE R - H + 4,830,000 (=
TP : 5,138,000 87T) FEREE
RE+T—EANEE-

AEEEZGRWNAFEZEEH —RNF
7Z90H(ZZE—EF : AHE) °

ESENFIERZRZIA 2R DM
T :

2015 2014
—E—HE —E—-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
8,332 6,617
3,081 =
34,910 23,310
46,323 29,927
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nd other-i‘"'éw%\'bles - Grbd#'"" .

(Continued)

At 31st March 2015, trade receivables of HK$6,442,000

(2014: HK$2,127,000) were past due but not impaired.

These relate to a number of independent customers for

whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months =EAR
Over 3 months BB =18

At 31st March 2015, trade receivables of HK$34,910,000
(2014: HK$23,385,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AREE
NTD A

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

ﬂ&&iﬂ!ﬂ!l&wﬁ t;m
(&)
R-ZE—HEF=A=+—H BHE
U7X 18 6,442,000 BT(ZF—ME :
2,127,000 &) EBMBAERRE - %%
FEWRIEER S & Y SR i R R 8R 2 B
VYEFER - ZEE 5 RIHIEZRER
DT -

2015 2014
—T-1F —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FTAET
3,361 2,127
3,081 -
6,442 2,127

R-ZB-HE=A=+—RH B5EWK
X 134,910,000 B T(=ZF —MF :
23,385,000 #Eit)ERERZHEE
BRI EERREEBE - ZERER
Uz BB RBEFEE -

REEE SR HMERRKIEZREET
LTHIERSIE :

2015 2014
—=E—h%F —E—MF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FExT
15,186 10,505
12,896 9,061
2,608 2,863
30,780 22,429




KPR EEEERT —SEE

(Continued)
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R-FB-OER-F—=F
A —H
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 EWEIERERE
receivables
At 31st March 2015 and 2014 RZE-—RER-_ZT—NF
=Z=A=+-—H

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement (note 7).
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off, when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

()
AEEE S EWFRRERE 22BN
T

2015 2014
—S-1¥F —F-nmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExr TET
23,385 22,596
11,525 789
34,910 23,385

ERERKFERE 2RI RERT &
AREWRER(METERTHAX—
B0 - BRBRNKZSE -—RNES
T2 m SN R & S o

REHREZBESFERRBA LAZERE
W IR 2 BREE ©
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d 26 RERSARSER —

FRERFELT
Group Company
F5RE 27
2015 2014 2015 2014

Z2-Ef C—EZ-mNF ZB-HF C"—E2-Q0OF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET FETL FET
Cash at bank and on hand BTREFES 31,427 73,797 10 13
Short-term bank deposits BHESRITER 647 462 - —
32,074 74,259 10 13
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the RERERB[LSBHUTHERTE -
following currencies:
Group Company
*5%E b /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-hE —E-NF ZB-HF —ZT-NOF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET
HK$ B TT 4,869 5,143 10 13
RMB AR 23,070 66,034 - -
NTD Haw 3,761 2,903 - -
usD EH 360 165 - =
SGD F N3 7T 14 14 - —
32,074 74,259 10 13
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ompany (Continued)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the

following for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

e
| 26 HeREARLEE —

EEERFLE (#)
BEABHLARATS B ZAB
SEARBTELAEUTEE :

statement:
Group
AEME
2015 2014
—E—-RLfF —E-WF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Cash and cash equivalents HEPERELER 32,074 74,259
Bank overdrafts (note 31) SRITEXZ (KL 31) (17,337) (1,893)
14,737 72,366

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.5% (2014: 0.8%) per annum as at 31st March
2015. These deposits have an average maturity of 69
days (2014: 81 days).

R=ZFB-HAF=ZA=+—H FEHRIHT
FR2EBFANRBISE(CE—H
F:08E) ZEFHRZ YRS 69
A(ZZE—MmFE:81H) -
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and 27 BRERARE — FREAR

ompany it |- . AT
Share capital
BE
Ordinary share of HK$0.02 each
BERE{E .02 Tz HiEAR
2015 2014
—2-i¥ —E-IF
Number of Number of
shares shares
BH#AE ROEE
‘000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$°000
Fi& FET FiE FET
Authorised BE
At 1st April 2013, 31st March RZZE—=FpPmPA—H =
2014 and 2015 FE-NER-F-HF=
B=+—H 15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid ERTREE
At 1st April 2013, 31st March R=ZE—=F@mA—H =
2014 and 2015 E-NFER=F-HF=
A=+—H 5,633,035 112,661 5,633,035 112,661
Share premium
KRR
2015 2014
—E—-hFE —Z—MmEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFAET FET
At 1st April 2013, 31st March 2014 R-ZZE—=FWBF—H  ZF—
and 2015 FR=Z2-AF=ZA=1+—H 126,733 126,733

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Share-based payments

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014. Under the Scheme,
72,800,000 options were granted on 29th September
2014 at the exercise price of HK$0.7 per share. Of the
options granted, 30% vested on 29th March 2015,
30% will be vested on 29th September 2015 and the
remaining 40% will be vested on 29th March 2016. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of the Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
are as follows:

At beginning of the year FM
Granted Eidan
Lapsed R
At end of the year F£ER

As at 31st March 2015, out of the 71,220,000 outstanding
options, 21,366,000 options were exercisable. No
options were exercised during the year. Share options
outstanding at the end of the year will be expired on 28th
September 2017.

The fair value of options granted during the year
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
HK$0.21 per option. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.61 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$0.70, volatility of 61.64%, dividend yield of
0.00%, an expected option life of three years, and a risk-
free interest rate of 0.94%.

The total expenses for share options of HK$8,482,000
(2014: nil) are recognised as “employee benefit
expenses” in the consolidated income statement (Note
12).

e R RR MR

28 LI RBRZ ™R

AATR—ZE—WFNA —ARTZRRE
BERGSCHERTM—BRESTE(Z
s &) o RIEZ & 72,800,00014
BRER-—ZF-NEAB=TALBRES
TEEASROTET - IREBERE
EF 0 R=-ZF—HRF=A=1+NH
BB U BR=_E—HEFABE=TH
HEREB 8 T40%BR=_F—X<E=A
—tTHAEEE  SHBRERTIFE AR
FIFREBAR D B 2 —IRE @A ©

EARTEZBRELHEZBHUT :

2015
—E—-1%F
No. of share
options

BRERE

72,800,000
(1,580,000)

71,220,000

R=—ZE-HFE=H=+—H"
71,220,000 17 [E RATEZBREEF -
21,366,000 7 MEMIRFER TITHE o F A
FBITHERBRE - FRERTEZBRE
BR-ZZ—tFEAA=-TNHEH-

FRAREBEREZ A AEBET L =ERXH
EEEEAEE  SHEBRENSO.21
B hEXZETEHAZEARLER
M2 R1E0.6158T » TEE0.70B T
K18 61.64% ~ IRE F0.00% * FEHEE
REESMH=FRERAMRFIE0.94% °

B8 IR #E PR S 42 %88,482,00078 T (==
—NE: B)RGEKRERZ[EERF
B |(Mf3E12) FRFERR o
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— Group and Company 20 ff§ — AEMRELT

(a) Group (a) #F%KH
2015 2014
ot 2k % 3 —E—-mEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Share redemption reserve % 10 FE ] {3 s 12 12

Contributed surplus (note (i) BNBER (HIEE (i) 189,009 189,009

Exchange difference PE 5 =58 2,102 2,292

Buildings revaluation reserve EFELHE 70,180 63,065

Available-for-sale financial assets A HENKEES HfEE

revaluation reserve 4,702 1,583
Share-based payment reserve LR D BB 2 5B 8,482 -
Retained earnings REBEF 15,128 54,466

289,615 310,377

(i)  Movements of each component of the reserves )y HESDHZEBHIANEGS
are set out in the consolidated statement of BHEEEX -
changes in equity.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group (i) AEEZHARGBEREBE
represents the credit arising from the reduction —hWARE=R=+—-HI
of share capital during the year ended 31st FEHBRRARBE =T —
March 1999, and the transfer from share ZFE=A=+-HILFEH
premium during the year ended 31st March B R EE (M EE29(b)())
2010 (note 29 (b)(i)). FREE 4 25 o
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— Group and Company 29 f#ff — FRERFLE @)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) 2 F
Share  Share-based
redemption payment  Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
IR B ER
RIMOGERE  ZfIRER BARE RiER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET FET FET
(note (i))
()
At 1st April 2013 RZZE-=fMmA—A 12 - 235,020 (9,208) 225,824
Loss for the year EREE
(note 10) (Hizt10) - - - (2,225) (2,225)
At 31st March 2014 ~ R=-Z-N%
=B=1+—-8 12 - 235,020 (11,433) 223,599
At 1st April 2014 R-Z-MEmA-A 12 — 235,020 (11,433) 223,599
Loss for the year EREE
(note 10) (Hiit10) - - - (8,541) (8,541)
Equity settled share- AEZZEENRHGE
based transactions ~ EBWZ AKX 5 = 8,482 = = 8,482
At 31st March 2015 ~ R=—Z-&fF
=A=+-H 12 8,482 235,020 (19,974) 223,540
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(Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

On 21st December 2009, a special resolution was
passed to cancel the share premium to eliminate
the accumulated losses of the Company as of
22nd December 2009, and the remaining balance
of the credit arising therefrom be credited to the

contributed surplus account of the Company.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al
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29 fEfR — FREREL2F @)

(b)

0T (E)

i) ARAZBABRHEALD
ARBRENEARCE BT
iR 2 17 8% 1T 2 IR 40 T B B2 P
KBEHBLAREEREZE

B-RBE-NWANAF=ZA
=t -BLEFEHRRAR
KRBE-ZT-—ZF=R8
=t-BLEFEBRNDEE
BEMELZER - RER
RE-NN-—FREAEEE
7)) ESEEEWHEET
&R AIMARERTAMH
2K

(1) AXBERERMEL
REREENAEEEDH
BXNRE %

@ ARAREEZALRE
EXEMIRERER
HERTRAUR KRR
BERZ B o

REZBBEAF+ZAZ=+—H  —
ERIARREBBUZTHRG
HE UEEELATAR-_BZTIEF
+t-A-+=-RzR:EE mH
WEE ZERBGTARDT ZHMA
BERER o



e
and 30 HHRAMEMNRE—FKE
ompany v - il X BRELF

Group Company
F5RE 25
2015 2014 2015 2014

—®-E% -T-QNF =$-5E§ =T [OF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000

FET FET FEIT FET
Trade payables B 5 EATIE 5,204 3,631 - —
Other payables and accruals ~ EtEMNFUIERETEHR 59,198 63,565 219 141
64,402 67,196 219 141
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BEENREBEZREONMAT :

Group

xEH
2015 2014
—E—-1%F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAEiT FET
Current to 3 months EHAIZE =18 3,367 1,790
4 to 6 months P ! 142 496
Over 6 months BB & A 1,695 1,345
5,204 3,631

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F % 167



:h-aand:‘ I“.! !:;::b:: ": sEe
-t - o A ™ -
de and other payables — Group and 30 ESRHEMEFRE
Company (Continued) BRELTF &)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
trade and other payables approximate their fair values,

sEasm ;
A NA Y

Ak

¥ e

—k%E

FEBRADNTZES R EMENTE
ZREEREQAAERSE  LUATIE

and are denominated in the following currencies: HEBIE :
Group Company
F5E 27
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1iF —ET-OF ZB-HF —T-@OF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
HK$ BT 22,743 19,649 219 141
RMB ARE 40,975 46,991 - -
usD EY 563 527 - -
NTD Haw 121 29 - -
64,402 67,196 219 141

31 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group

Bank overdrafts, secured RTEX > BIRF
Secured bank loans — current BIRFRTER — "B
portion

Bank borrowings — current portion  $R{TEE — RELH
Secured bank loans — non-current BIRFRITER — EREB

portion
Total borrowings (note (a)) EEBRE (KL (@)
Obligations under finance leases MERNEBE (A (b))
(note (b))
— Current portion — REIFD
— Non-current portion — IEREEB D
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31 EEMESHVAR-—FKE

2015 2014
-5 —B-@mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
17,337 1,893
25,136 18,342
42,473 20,235
10,314 11,947
52,787 32,182
169 —

250 =

419 =




inance leases — Group (Continued)

(@) Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 to 2 years

Between 2 to 5 years

Later than 5 years

1R
1Z225FR
2Z5FR
5F#

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
NTD

ek

(&)
(a)

B8
REEREARTIIHEEE

.
H—*%m

2015 2014
—e-1¥F —F—nmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExr TET
42,473 20,235
1,367 1,486
2,816 4,304
6,131 6,157
52,787 32,182

FEEBEZREBUATIIERES]

1B :
2015 2014
—B-EF —ZT-QOF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
41,137 18,893
11,650 13,289
52,787 32,182
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31 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group (Continued)

(a)

Borrowings (Continued)

At 31st March 2015, banking facilities amounting to
HK$77,636,000 (2014: HK$79,995,000) granted by
banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$21,646,000
(2014: HK$22,283,000) (note 14(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$ 59,155,000
(2014: HK$63,634,000) (note 16(c));

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the

Company (note 34);

(iii) pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2014: HK$23,500,000) of the Group (note
22(b)).

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$18,410,000 (2014: HK$13,876,000)
of the Group (note 23(b)).

At 31st March 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings
bear floating interest rates of Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 0.25% p.a. to 2.5%
p.a. and fixed interest rate of 2.1% for New Taiwan
dollar-denominated loans. The weighted average
effective interest rate per annum of the Group’s
bank borrowings as at 31st March 2015 is 1.98%
(2014: 2.33%).

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2015 and 2014.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 % 4 &5 51 &2 B B bR A &

31 ERRBMEHEVAR-—FXH

(&)

(a)

&8 (E)

R-ZE—HF=A=+—H &8
£ 77,636,000 jt(=F — MO F :
79,995,000 7T) ZRITEEE R
TRFAEE » WHL TR

() PFREIEA 521,646,000
7T(=ZF — M4 : 22,283,000
BRL)ZAEBEBSE T KA
XL RETEF(
F14c) REEEHEEAL S
59,155,00078 T(= & — Y
fF : 63,634,000/ T ) REE
ZETREWHE(MEE16(c))
ZEEIRE

(i) ANATEML 2z AERE
34) ;

iy ~"EEDLHEFRTEX
23,500,000 7T(= & — M
£ : 23,500,000 7t ) (Fff &
22(b)) ;

(iv) AEEZRDABEFABRRE
Z B EE 18,410,000 7 T
(=2 — ™ % : 13,876,000
BIT) (fEE23(b)) °

R-ZZB-HAF=ZA=+—-R0 &
EERITHREZREBRITERE
HEMO0.25EE2.5E 2 FEFF
Z REEMNE21E(RHF AW
EXmE)st R - R=B—HF=
B=1+—B  A"EERTEEZM
BFIERFENRDB1.98E(ZF
—PO% 1 2.33[E) °

RZE-—RER-ZZ—NE=HA
=+—H BEZAREHERT
B -
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inance leases — Group (Continued) ()

(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) MBFHRHAR
The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the REBERBYERER  AVNEE
lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities ZREFFETHBEA -

by the Group.

2015 2014
—ZE—hF —Z=—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities — RIEANBERE — REEY
minimum lease payments: FRIE
— No later than 1 year — 1R 180 —
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 F%EB5FR
than 5 years 256 —
436 =
Future finance charges on finance  BEHLN 2 REE K H
leases (17) -
Present value of finance lease RIERNEEZRE
liabilities 419 —
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as BEHANEEZREZYNT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—Z-1F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
— No later than 1 year —15R 169 —
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 5%&E5FR
than 5 years 250 —
419 =
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erred income tax — Group
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset

Haw
L1

32

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax
assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

sEasm ;
A NA Y

TEN
| Ll Ak

BIEEFRRIR — KEA

sl A A 4K S 58 1) 1 47 #E I 7% B 2 AR S X
EEENBMEHRAaERSE  BELM
BHEEREEERF —HBEEM @
RTEERANERBRZFEHER
MEFREREERFHEELERE
W BEESHEEHRSEEMEENE -
BLEFEHEERELHMEREED T
MR

Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12
months

Deferred income tax liabilities to be
crystallised after more than 12
months

Deferred income tax liabilities — net

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is

as follows:

At 1st April 2014 and 2013

Tax charged to the consolidated
income statement (note 9)

Tax charged to other comprehensive
income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2015 and 2014

172

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &F f2 4%

2015 2014
—E—-RF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HBRER 12 BB ZNE ZIELE
FTiSHEE
(3,586) (3,611)
BREB12 BB EEE ZIELE
FIEHiaE
25,959 24,362
FEEFEHAE — F58 22,373 20,751
EIEFTEHERE 2 FEBUT
2015 2014
—E—hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
RITE—MER-FT—=FNHF—H 20,751 17,862
Rir e W R MNR 28 (A2 9)
243 462
REMZE R IIR 218
1,379 2,457
ERER - (30)
RIZB-RAFR-FT-—OF
=A=+—H 22,373 20,751
tEEBER A A
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ed income tax — Group (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets

BIEFREBMN — s&H 9w
RHAREE BB EEE DK NELS
CERELMEHEEREEEH N

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same T

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

BEFFRRNAR

Accelerated

tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
nER AT E LRERD st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FiEx
At 1st April 2013 R-ZZE—=FNF—H 5,228 16,442 21,670
Charged/(credited) to the RiEElWEROBR(GTA)
consolidated income
statement 452 (187) 265
Charged to other R EL i 2 [ Uk &5 41 BR
comprehensive income — 2,457 2,457
Exchange differences N =% — (30) (80)
At 31st March 2014 R-ZZE-—EF=A=+—H 5,680 18,682 24,362
Charged to the consolidated ~ R&RE W= R KR
income statement 56 162 218
Charged to other R E At 2 [ Uk &5 1 BR
comprehensive income — 1,379 1,379
Exchange differences ELELE — — —
At 31st March 2015 R-ZB-—HF=A=t+—H 5,736 20,223 25,959
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Deferred income tax assets EEFRSNEE
Tax losses
REGKR
2015 2014
—Z-1F —Z—MmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R-E-—NFER-ZE—=F
mAE—H (3,611) (3,808)
Charged to the consolidated income ~ RA4R& IR
statement 25 197
At 31st March 2015 and 2014 R-FB-HFER-F-—NE=A
=t—H (3,586) (3,611)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax A EEE DR EEREINEES
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation T EEFE B AR RERF A F LA IE &
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits BREALAELEFEHREE  A&EH
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of B AR B 1E E5 18 359,524,000 & T
HK$359,524,000 (2014: HK$332,693,000) that can be (== — W £ : 332,693,0005% jt ) 7
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax HEHEDIKERRZERFTWA - AR
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of TEEEEERERTEE  WIAEER
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date, ZEFHEERE ZEMHEERBEIEZR
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$72,079,000 8A B » 72,079,000/8 T(=& — 4 & :
(2014: HK$49,188,000) which will be expired within 5 49,188,000 T ) Z MIBEER R A F
years. NEIHE o
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ash generated from operations 33 EEmMRRASE
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) MFABRAGRREERA)
(used in)/generated from operations BEECHIE
2015 2014
—E-5fF —Z—MmEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRIT FET
Loss before income tax BTSRRI E 18 (39,224) (24,286)
Adjustments for: KR
Amortisation of leasehold land and  FHE 4 #h K £ ith {5 FA R 124 85
land use rights (note 13) (Kiat13) 787 789
Depreciation of property, plant and  #)% - #22 & R BT E
equipment (note 14) (KiEEt 14) 16,312 14,875
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEY%E + WEKREZ
plant and equipment (see below) (W), BE(RT) (145) 1,013
(Surplus)/loss on revaluation of WEWMEE G (B BE
investment properties (note 16) (H1zE 16) (7,603) 7,528
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) T RESE (H3E17) 16,185 39,077
Provision for impairment of film EYMERBREIEY
rights and films in progress WAERE (K 17)
(note 17) 2,082 6,263
Share of (profit)/loss of associates ~ FE{LEEE A T (FIH) /B8
(note 18) (B 18) (640) 401
(Reversal of)/provisions for trade B S RIIE (BB
receivables (note 7) (H1EE7) 11,525 789
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEUHRLEMBERE 2 W&
sale financial assets (note 6) (Kt 6) - (791)
Impairment loss on available-for- At EMKEE 2 RERE
sale financial assets (note 23(a)) (H1a#23(a)) 49 107
Gain on disposal of investment in ~ FEUREEE A R FIERE 2
an associate (note 18(d)) (H1zE 18(d)) (280) —
Fair value gain on financial assets A AEFFABRRZ
at fair value through profit or loss B EE 2 A REWS
(note 23(b)) (Ktat23(b)) (6,676) (4,274)
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33 BEEM#@Re®m

(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) MFAEMAKEEREEFRR)
(used in)/generated from operations (Continued) AR &ZHIR(E)
2015 2014
otk % 3 —E—-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Reversal of obsolescence of REFERE (Mt24)
inventories (note 24) (114) (356)
Share-based payment expense DB AEEZIREAX
(note 7) (HizE7) 8,482 —
Interest income (note 8) FEW N (KL 8) (1,321) (817)
Interest expense on loans and BERREZFER X (FF8)
overdrafts (note 8) 907 891
Interest element of finance leases  BMERLN = R 2% (41:F8)
(note 8) 9 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E
(note 15) (HiaE15) 201 202
Changes in working capital EEESEH (TEERERE
(excluding the effects of exchange ZEREZEZFE) :
differences on consolidation):
Inventories 78 52 958
Trade and other receivables B R HAMERKIE (19,098) 21,080
Amounts due from associates JE Bt X R FRIE 4,443 5,333
Trade and other payables B REMENTRIE (2,833) (7,877)
Receipts in advance FEW R IE 625 (8,836)
Cash (used in)/generated from EE(FA)/ FERe
operations (16,275) 57,069

176 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al



(Continued)

(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash
(used in)/generated from operations (Continued)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds

from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (note 14) BREFE (ML 14)
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HEY  HBEREEZ
property, plant and equipment (W), BEmE7)

(note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY% - #32Kk R
plant and equipment Z 8 FIR

(a)

BREEFSRNGREEEMA)
FRBReZHR(E)
REERERERA - HEWE
BN RIBZ IR EE -

2015 2014
—E—h%F —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FExT

2 1,028

145 (1,013)

147 15
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(Continued)

nerated from operations

wy e
TERYRYNYY
vty raehs

33 EEMmEAS#

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FEAMBFTEEHIF
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
BITHR MEEANAR

2015 2014 2015 2014

—2-5f —T-mNF CZB-Hif C—ZT-@OF

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2014 and 2013 R=ZE—MF

R=—B-=F

A—H 30,289 9,000 - =

Proceeds from bank loans RITERZIBHE 14,800 28,550 - —

Repayments of bank loans BERTER (9,601) (7,000) - —
Inception of finance lease ERERLD

(Note (c)) (1 (c) - - 515 -
Repayments of capital element EERERLY

of finance leases ZAE G - = (96) -

Exchange differences ERZERHE (38) (261) - -
At 31st March 2015 and 2014 RZZ—FHF

kR=E-DmEF
=ZA=t+-—-H 35,450 30,289 419 -
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EEFREEH

During the year ended 31st March 2015, the Group

entered into finance lease arrangements in respect

of assets with a total capital value of HK$515,000
(2014: nil).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

RBE-FT-AF=F=+—HL
FE AEEHREBERLER
515,000 BT (== —MF : &)z
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(b)
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34 HARR — *%H&*"Fl

(a)
Group Company
*%E 08
2015 2014 2015 2014
“EB-1¥ —ET-mF ZB-HF —FT-@OF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Guarantees given to banks in ~ FHEB LD 7 ZEIT
respect of banking facilities EEM@ERTHEL
of subsidiaries ZIER - — 45,000 51,000
Guarantees given to banks in ~ FMEB D 7 ZEIT
respect of banking facilities EEM@ERTHEL
of subsidiaries - utilised ZER-EBA - = 29,943 17,000

On 13th April 2011,
statement of claim, which was revised on 12th
October 2012 and 4th April 2014, with no specified

the Company received a

amount from a third party in respect of a legal
litigation against alleged fraudulent conduct relating
to the management of an associated company

which is under liquidation.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice
from the legal advisors which have considered the
information so far available, consider such claim is
rather flimsy, and the Company has a good chance
to defend its position. In this regard, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate any material
liabilities would arise from this litigation and there
would be no material impact to the financial
position nor consolidated financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended

31st March 2014 and 2015.

(b)

REZZF-——FNA+=H ' ADH
BRES-IRHBEESHECHRR
RimE(R=ZF—Z-FtA+=H
R-ZZ-—MNEMAMAEKET)
AEERHHBERP CHENTE
BE 2 EBATTRZRERR

RABREEERBEEBEEA(EE
EEAMEENR)IRMZER
% REEERREEEH > BAK
NEREHERSAHTISRE -5
HmE » ARAREEL AR
AEERTMERES mﬁmﬂ
ARFAEEBE_Z—NFR=
—£¢EHE+—H¢¢EZM&
RREGENHERRPBERY
# o
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YrayETAAY
FTITILEE,

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and film

royalty deposits REZMEZRSE
Investments (note (a)) ’R& (K17 (a)

(@)

In August 2014, the Group entered into agreements
to set up joint ventures, MREEHZ R EEEEIR
RE(T£XFR]) and EREXAEDEHRREES D
X(EREB)[€XEZD(BREE)]). The Group
had a financial commitment of RMB49,900,000
(equivalent to HK$62,320,000) in respect of unpaid
capital contributions to these joint ventures, which
represent the Group’s 40% and 49.5% equity
interests in £ X &1 and SXXZD(EREE)

respectively.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

BYIE - AREY

- 35 EFKIE
RBERRECITNEREEZEREX
T

Group

*TEE
2015 2014
—E—-h%F —E &
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
66,405 58,752
62,320 -
128,725 58,752

(@ R=ZE-—NENR  RNEEFT L
BUBIAELNAREREXEH
REEEARQAA(TZEER))
FREREXAXDERREES D
XERER)(E£XEZDER
BB - AKENOZESE
RAFHZANHERAARY
49,900,000 T (4HE R 62,320,000
BT 2 BBAEE - HERAEE
REXFRREXEXZ(AREH)
DAl 40% K& 49.5% Z BRFE ©



(a)

_:la . l.l 1_1_'h“
ng lease commitments

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
The lease terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the
majority of lease agreements are renewable at the
end of the lease period at market rate. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year 1R

Later than 1 year and no later than 1E#%{EB5FR
5 years

Later than 5 years 5F%

During the year ended 31st March 2015, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$8,386,000 (2014: HK$10,492,000) (note 7).

36 EEHWNRIE

(a)

BEEAVRRE - FREERER
A
AEERBEFTHEKEHEIBZ
HEZETMAZRYE - BN F
1220 BREHELOHRT
REHARZENHKTEER - BET
AR R E RO T Z KRR EEH
THRBEWT :

Group

*KE
2015 2014
—E—hF —E—-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
5,816 5,396
26,254 22,569
77,034 86,663
109,104 114,628

RBE-ZFE-—HEF=A=+—
ALtFEE A"EEHREEMAX
8,386,000& (= & — £

10,492,000 7T ) 7] L &R =N =
BE(BEET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M A TR

36 Operating lease commitments (Continued) 36 EEHEHERIE @
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor (b) WEHEHRIE — *KEESHHIHE
A
The Group leases its investment properties to AEBREFTHBESEHOZHE
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating mETHPHBEEKREYX -
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between BN F2E45F - RIETAFHEL
2 to 4 years. The future aggregate minimum lease EHAWE 2 R RFEBESLEZEI
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are T
as follows:
Group
*TEE
2015 2014
—Z—1F —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Within 1 year 1FR 5,321 6,061
Later than 1 year and no later than 1&E#%&{EB5FR
5 years 5,397 5,873
10,718 11,934
As at 31st March 2015 and 2014, the Company R-ZZE-—FER=ZZ=E—NE=H8
did not have any significant commitments under =+—H AAFLEEMERL
operating leases. EHAEIE o
37 Business combinations 37 XBEHt
Acquisition of M B ENEBARIBRLF ([ HRL) BERMNSRBE SRR RBERLT
(1 8))
In September 2014, the Group, through its 90% R-ZE-—NFERA  AEEEBHEHIO%
owned subsidiary, acquired 80% of the equity interest BFEENNBARRIE S BRATE % 2
at a consideration of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to 1,000,000 & Bz 0 75 X W BB H 80% 2 IR
HK$1,249,000) by subscribing 1,000,000 shares allotted - REA AR 1,000,000 T (FHER
by ZB. SR is principally engaged in software and 1,249,000 BT) - ZREERHERE
game design in the PRC. It contributed revenue of BUERBRERT - —E—HFAAE=
approximately HK$18,000 and net loss of approximately Z-RAF=FHER  ZARBLKEER
HK$637,000 to the Group for the period from September 2R #18,000 & T &= & #9637,000
2014 to March 2015. BITERFE -
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= EFw
combinations (Continued)
Acquisition of MM B ENBAMRBBTR2F(HR D)
(Continued)
The following table summarises the consideration paid

37 XBStH@=) L
BERNERDEANENERAT
(T BB ) ()
TRERA S RE A2 AE - A isE
M FRBEERFAEESEIAR

for ZRX, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the acquisition date.

fﬁo

2015
—E—-ILf
HK$’000
FRET
Purchase consideration in cash paid for T S RTEER O 2REeRE
allotment of shares by 5 X 1,249
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ERBAERNAEBEERMRIBEAR
acquired and liabilities assumed e
Bank and cash balances SRITRIB SRR 1,356
Other receivables Hth e FRIE 10
Other payables H{th e 5018 (144)
Total identifiable net assets iR EERR 1,222
Non-controlling interest TR (119)
Goodwill e 146
1,249
Cash and bank balances acquired Frik g IR & R R1T 484 1,356
Cash consideration RERE (1,249)
Net cash inflow on acquisition IEZR&RANRH 107

HBZBHE=-ZE—NFENA —HEEEA
IR A alaREEREZREY
31,0008 T K EE X 1,092,000 %8 7T °

Had ZREX been consolidated from 1st April 2014, the
consolidated income statement would show pro-
forma revenue of approximately HK$31,000 and loss of
approximately HK$1,092,000.
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elated party transactions — Group

Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements, significant related party

transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

(@) Sales of services

Rental income received/receivable
from rental of office premises to an
associate

Management fee income received/
receivable from an associate

TEN
]

sEasm ;
A NA Y
*Ee

Ak

¥ e

38 FREALRS — a%KE
BAGE I RE A EFREE
S AEEREREBBRPETZE

REBEALTRZSHOT :
(a) SHERF
2015 2014
—E—-ILfF —ZT-WF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
HERAEMETHE AT
T UER, FEUR 2 A& WA
734 734
W EY, e U B A B
ZEBBIWA 245 245
979 979

Sales of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all customers.

(b) Purchases of services

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an
associate

Other administrative costs paid/
payable to an associate

(b)

BN THE QA
Z RERE R R R BR S

BN BN TFHE QT

Z B AR

B BN THE N E

Z EABATBUR A

Purchases of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

HERBDREBRERRAEEF

Z —MRERIRFELT -

R TR 7
2015 2014
—E-EF —B-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT FHET
9,467 8,945
4,240 3,774
400 131
14,107 12,850

BERBDREBRERARAEHE
B2 —RESRIRFEST -



(Continued)

(c) Key management compensation
Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution
of the activities of the Group. Key management
compensation is disclosed in note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases

i HIT Yhad T
d party transactions — Group

“ww -y
- *
38 AREALEZS — F&ME
(#)
(c) EEEEARME
ITEBABETRAAEEES
BHE  REESESE ST
BHRITAEE R o TBE
BAEMESELSRSMERRME
12 RIREE ©

(d B#E WEBRBEEZFRER

of services
2015 2014
—Z—h%F —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Receivables from associates (note 18) FEUREAE A B IE (Ft7E 18) 2,621 7,064

39 Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2015
(2014: nil).

39 KR
ESTEBRRBBE-_ZE-H1F5=HA
=St-BLEFEZRE(ZZ2-DNEF:
) o
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ructure — principal subsidi

March 2015:

Name

4

Shares held directly by the Company:

FLFERRERR

Mei Ah Holdings Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:

FNFRERARR

Era Movies Limited

ERREBRAT

Fintage Asia Corporation

G major Limited

MATV Limited

XEERARLT

MATV (Asia) Limited
FRER(THERAR

Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited

XE(FR)BRAT

Place of
incorporation

MR IR

British Virgin Islands

ABELHE

Hong Kong

i

British Virgin Islands

ABRLEE

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
gh

Hong Kong

&R

nyEYNNY

aries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st

ll ¥
40 KERR — FEMRELTE
THRR=F-—HEE=A=+—A2E

EMBAREBE !

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding

REEZR

Sales and distribution of
audio visual products
HERBAYEER

Securities investment

#5RE

Artiste management

EAER

Television operations

TRxp

Television operations

B

Sales and distribution of
audio visual products
HERBAYEER

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITEE/
HEMEFER

50,050 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

50,050 REREE1 £
LEER

HK$100 ordinary shares

10082 EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
each

1RERAEEI X
ZEER

HK$10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 B 2 E B

HK$4 ordinary shares
4B ERR

HK$20,000 ordinary shares
20,0008 w2 EBMR

HK$10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 BT 2 EER

Percentage of
effective interest
held by the Group
FRERHL
RRREENY

100

80

100

55

100

100

100



~— princi

(Continued)

Name
2%

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)
FORMERERR : (8)

Mei Ah Development Company Limited

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited
ZLEFREERLA
Mei Ah Online (HK) Company Limited

ZOHEE(ER)BRAT

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

ZEMEREARLT

Mei Ah Trading Company Limited

EMETERRBEERA
(note (c)) (Ait(c)

Place of
incorporation

HR IR

British Virgin Islands

ABELHE

Hong Kong

&2

Hong Kong
A

Hong Kong

R

British Virgin Islands

ABELHS

PRC

G|

_‘l.ﬂ“ 3
‘‘‘‘‘ 40 SEFEE — TERELT
Particulars of Percentage of
issued share capital/ effective interest
Principal activities registered capital held by the Group
BRiTRE/ FRERHL
TERY HMEFEE BAHREAL
Licensing and sub-licensing 50,000 ordinary shares of 100
of film rights US$1 each
REREBREFME 50,000 REREE1%7
ZEER
Production of films and HK$2 ordinary shares 100
tele-features
REEXRERY 2B EBR
Video online investment HK$100 ordinary shares 90
FRRARRILRE 10082 EER
Property investment HK$2 ordinary shares 100
HK$500,000 non-voting
deferred shares
NERE 2B ERR
500,000
ZERZRELRD
Licensing and sub-licensing 50,000 ordinary shares of 100
of film rights US$1 each
RURBREXRE 50,000 REREE 1 X
ZEER
Property investment RMB16,000,000 70
NERE AE#16,000,000 T
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ructure-—--b"ﬂhélpal subs&ﬁ%r-lbs"--*—m SEEE — EEEI’HH’R_J
(#&)

(Continued)

Name

4]

Place of
incorporation

HR IR

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)

FNFRERARR : (4

EEREFANC (AR BRAT

(note (d)) (#2(d))

ZORBFRER(AR)BRAT

(note (d)) (#7Z (c))

REEW(XR)VBRAT (hote (¢) (Hit(c)

RERGEERROERLT

RERR(ER)BEBRAT (note () (42 ()

RENREKR(LB)BRAT (hote (¢) (Wit (c)

BNAHBRAARAERAT

PRC

PRC

Gl

PRC
R

Taiwan

o>
-3

PRC

el

PRC
"

PRC
FE

Principal activities

IERE

Investment of films and
telefeatures, and artiste
management service

EYRERThRE
REAEERK

Theatre investment

Theatre operations

EVRER

Production, licensing and
distribution of film rights
and television operations

2 RUERBTEZME
REGEH

Video online investment

FRARRBRIRE

Theatre operations

EVRER

Software and game design

Bt RERRET

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S S BB R 2 Al

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRiTEE/
HMEFEE

RMB10,000,000

ARE#10,000,000 70

RMB20,000,000

AR%20,000,000 70

RMB3,000,000
AR3,000,000 T

2,000,000 ordinary shares
of NTD10 each

2,000,000 REREE 10
Ak EER

HK$2,500,000 (2014:
HK$1,000,000)

2,500,000 7T
(ZZ—[{# : 1,000,000
B

RMB6,000,000
AR6,000,000 T

RMB1,100,000
AK%1,100,000 T

Percentage of
effective interest
held by the Group
FRERHL
BAHREAL

100

100

100

85

20

100

72



(Continued)

Note:

(@)

Other than MATV (Asia) Limited, Mei Ah Trading
Company Limited and Mei Ah Development Company
Limited which operate in Hong Kong and overseas; &
PIZSEBMEERAR, TRERBZRELALR)FR
AT, EDRUYKER(LR)ERAT, ZTFH(X
E)BRAR, EEAKRAF)BEERAR and BEMS
BREEEAREBRAE which operate in the PRC; 3%
TR RERMHER AT which operates in Taiwan; all
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong.

All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under the PRC laws.

Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under the PRC laws.

.....

ww

Lid
EE -
SEEH — TEMEBLT

(&)

(@)

(b)

(c)

BREDER (M) ARAE » MeiAh
Trading Company Limited & Mei
Ah Development CompanyLimited
HREBRBIEE  BMEDL
BREAERAR - ERR\FEX
fL(AtR)BRAR - ZRERBEKR
EE(QLR)ERAR ~ ZREH (KR
B)VERAR ERERKR(EERE)R
BRERABREMNS ME)BEHAR
EERABARELE  URED
RBEBERROBRAARAERE
o FEMBAREELEEBLE o

LIREMBARBARATF °
ABBHEEER L 2FIIEEDR
o

RARBEPEEER L2 IEBED
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tie - AEERBEREAMBTEZEE AER

ancial years are as follows: - BEWNT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HfF —_E-NF —ET—=F 2 —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET FET FET FET

Results X8

(Loss)/profit attributable to 7482 T #EHG A FEAE
owners of the Company (B1|) /RE (39,338) (23,896) (48,735) (11,413) 55,000

As at 31st March
®W=RA=+—8H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“B—RF —T-NOF ZE-=ZF B ZE-——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FET T FiEx

Assets and liabilities HSEHAR

Total assets BEE 707,180 709,108 711,073 808,891 675,666
Total liabilities HEE (172,239) (151,844) (135,570)  (193,614) (77,924)
Total equity HERERS 534,941 557,264 575,503 615,277 597,742
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Ht- Percentage

*fa % wr »r n wwwarw
mepaak TR o‘fGroup’s

interests
Address Type Lease term XEEZ
Mo hk \|a HER #R2ask

Shop 2 on Ground Floor Commercial Medium 100%
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
FUREAL R [GES H A
BEHAHE 895
BENKRE
# T 2 SR

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28 Industrial Medium 100%
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
hENEEE I¥ H A
B LT 32 9%
EEHBO1TESSE
15-2335 & 25-28 5L T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2 Industrial Medium 100%
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
hENEE I A
B B3 32 5%
EEHPO1042
1-258 T35

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and Industrial Medium 100%
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

hENEE I% A A
PNELER IR
NEEETE AR
5123 ER245F T IREN
Kb E V18 SE
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Address
Mo hk

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HARAR
RARER RTS8
BRE28EFRE
R 5935 % 60 5RE L

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng
International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
I A REFE
B M RS & 88 B R
FHEBRBE SO
A 81£801-814 =

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District

Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin

Si Ming District

Xiamen

The People’s Republic of China
FEARLNE

Erd

BHHE

FLERBBEER O
MEEAT I 35EE21E
2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3

No. 2 Hua Xiao Street

Tianhe Ming Ya Court

Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China
FEARANE

EM

Ka &

FROMREK

PSLIE=Y 21

EEA2MIEIE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED XS IR EAE BB R Al

Type
EEb

Residential

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Residential

Lease term

HvEH

Medium

SRkl

Medium

by

Medium

T

Medium

i

 Percentage

of Group’s
interests
xEHEZ
#RIESL

100%

100%

70%

100%
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LTD.
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